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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORT ON INTERIM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF GADAA BANK S.C FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER,2024.

We have reviewed the accompanying Interim Financial Statements of Gadaa Bank S.C for
the Period ended 31 December,2024 which comprise the statement of financial position as
of December 31,2024, the statement of comprehensive income, statements of change in
shareholders’ equity, statement of cash flows for the period then ended and summary of
significant accounting policies and the related notes to the financial statements.

A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management's financial data
and making inquiries of management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit,
the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as

a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
issued by the international Accounting Standards Board (IASB); this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

A limited assurance engagement undertaken in accordance with ISAE 3000 (Revised)
involves assessing the suitability in the circumstances of the Bank’s use of its reporting
criteria as the basis of preparation for the preparation of its financial statements, assessing
the risks of material misstatement of the interim financial statements whether due to fraud or
error, responding to the assessed risks as necessary in the circumstances, and evaluating
the overall presgatation.of the financial statements. Fﬁ@f_rﬁTt}éd}assurance
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engagemeﬁt is substantially less in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement in
relation to both risk assessment procedures, including an understanding of internal
control, and the procedures performed in response to the assessed risks.,The procedures
we performed were based on our professional judgement and included inquiries,
observation of processes followed in preparing the interim financial statements,
inspection of selected working files documents, analytical procedures, evaluating the
appropriateness of quantification methods and reporting policies, and agreeing or
reconciling with underlying records. We believe that the resul‘ts of our procedures provide

a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Auditors’ Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made
to the accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the international

Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Restriction of liability

Our work has been undertaken to enable us to express a limited assurance cgnclusion
on the interim financial statements of Gadaa Bank S.C for the period ended 31
Decemb'er.2024 to the Management of the Bank in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not accept or assume liability to any party
other than the Bank, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have reached

at.
Tewodros and Fikre Audit Services
Partnership
Chartered Certified Accountants
May 12,2025

Addis Ababa Ethiopia
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Gadaa Bank S.C
Interim Financial Statements
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other comprehensive Income
For the six months ended 31 December 2024

31 December 202 30 June 2023

Notes Birr'000 Birr'000
Interest income 5 243,069 281,667
Interest Income on FTD & Treasury Bond - 39,870 72,047
Interest expense 6 (112,720) (110,267)
Net interest income 170,219 243,446
Commission income 7 252,847 383,630
Commission expense 7 - -
Net fees and commission income 252,847 383,630
Other operating income 8 288,553 53,220
Total operating income 711,619 680,297
Impairment losses on Cash, Bond & Receivables 13,17,18 (111)
Impairment Losses on Conventional Loans and Advances 14a (1,334) (22,635)
Impairment Losses on IFB Loans and Advances 14a (551)
Impairment losses on Guarantee & Letters of Credit Issur  31b (2,090) (515)
Net operating income 707,533 657,147
Personnel expenses 10 (220,686) (296,272)
Board of Directors' Allowance (660) (1,220)
Amortization of intangible assets (1,886) {3;751)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 20 (29.723) (48,021)
Other operating expenses 11 (165,482) (206,615)
Total Other Operating Expense (418,437) (555,878)
Profit/Loss before tax 289,096 101,269
¢
Income tax expenses 12a * (41,941) (11,118)
Profit/Loss for the year [ . 247,155 90,151
Other comprehensive income (OCI) net on income tax
Ttems that will not be subsequently reclassified into
profit or loss:
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on retirement benefits 22a
obligations net of 30% tax - (1,268)
Revaluation Gain-Equity Investment net of 30% Tax 16 - 116,839
- 115.570
Total comprehensive income for the period 247,155 205,721
Basic Earnings per share (Birr) 24 0.22 0.08

The notes on pages 7 to 55 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Gadaa Bank S.C

Interim Financial Statements
Ctatement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2024

b

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks
Loans and advances to customers
Interest free Financing
Investment securities:
-Financial asset at fair-value through
-Financial assets at Amortized cost
Other assets
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred Tax Asset

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits from customers
Lease liabilities

Other liabilities

Retirement benefit obligation
Deferred tax liability
Provisions

Total liabilities
L] .

EQUITY

Share capital
Retained earnings
Legal reserve
Risk reserve
Other reserve

Total equity

Total Liabilities and

31 December 2024

Notes

13
14
15

16
17
18
32
19
20
12e

21
32
22
22a
12f
31b.

23
25
26
27
28
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30 June 2023

Birr'000 Birr'000
1,170,572 964,309
3,245,591 2,416,909

71,361 51,913

226,912 226,912

667,291 459,396

592,863 281,253

413,621 375,316

121,831 63,240

742,997 716,801

11,503 49,299
7,264,542 5,605,348
4,910,873 4,006,911
166,447 143,622
556,889 186,700
13,014 13,014
62,304 58,160
2,090 515
5,711,617 4,408,922
’ .
1,183,750 1,074,406
139,824 (23,375)
84,326 22,538
32,396 10,228
112,628 112,628
1,552,924 1,196,425
7,264,542 5,605,348

The notes on pages 7 to 55 are an integral part of these financial




‘5jUBWIIR)S [BIDURUY 3saL) jo Hed |eaBajul ue ale GG 03 £ sebed uo sajou Byl

YT6'TSS'T  96E'TE  8T9'TIT 9TE'v8  vIB'6ET 0SL'EBT'T $Z0Z 12quadag TE€ 3e sV
66%"9GE [91722 - 68419 66T €91 PPE'601
T w & 68219 (682°19) E 9z aAJesad |eba) 0] Jajsuel]
= L91°¢C¢C = - (£91'€22) & 4T 2AIDSDY XSy 0] Jajsued ]
PrE60T - - - - e PPE'60T [or4 saleys Jo aNnss|
SSTLVE SST'LPE ST pouad ayj 4oj 31Joid
SZP'96T°'T 8ZT'OT 879'CIT BES'TT (SLE'ET) 20¥'v£L0'T +Z0Z AINC T 1€ SY
- STPo6T'T 8L 0T 8C9'¢IT_BESCL (GZE'EC) 50v PZO'T vz0z 2ung O 1e Sy
= = = 8€S'¢T (8€5C2) = 2AlBs24 |Bb3| 0] Jajsued)
3 8v.'6 (8v£°6) 2AI2S9Y Sy 0] J9jsued]
(69€'T) - - = (69€°'T) 5 31j0.4d JO aJeys 5,40302.41Q
9SZ'¥81 - . - - 952'¥8T 34 saleys Jo anss]
. \AE4 JV 4O
(89z't) - (g9z't) ezz sue|d Jyauaq paulap uo suieb juawalnsesaw-ay
6£8°9TT 6E8'9T1T 91 JUBLUISAAUL AJinb3-uieb an|ea Jied
151706 IS1°06 - 14 pouad ayj J4oj S507/3140.d
L18°£L08 08¥% (zv6'T) - (T£8°6L) 051068 €Z0T AINC T 1B SY
LT8°L08 08V (¢v6¢) - (T£8°6L) 051068 £20T dung O 18 sY
0004419 000,419 000,419 000,419 0004419 000,171 5210N
jejon OAIDSDY OAI9SI1  DAIISII sBujuiea [eNded aueys
NSy 1Py10 1e6a pauelay

$Z0TZ 12quia2aQ TE P2pPUa SYjuoLw XIs ayj 104
Ajnba u) sabueyd jo juswajels
SjuaWaje)s |enueuld wuajug
J°Sueqg eepen

-



J Gadaa Bank S.C

Interim Financial Statements
Statement of cash flows

For the six months ended 31 D

ecember 2024

.. -
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 29
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of NBE bills and bonds 17
Purchase of equity investments 16
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ’ 20
Right-of-use assets 20a
Purchase of Intangible Asset 19

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issues of shares 23

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 13

31 December 2024

30 June 2024

Notes Birr'o00 Birr'000
¢
509,553 871,061
509,553 871,061
(207,863) (357,294)
(0) (58,000)
(55,920) (174,043)
(88,419) (205,390)
(60,476) (28,087)
(412,678) (822,815)
109,344 184,256
109,344 184,256
206,219 232,502
964,351 731,849
1,170,571 964,351

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the

Page &

The notes on pages 7 to 55 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Gadaa Bank S.C
Interim Financial Statements
Notes to the financial statements
For the six months ended 31 December 2024

2.1

2.2

2.2.1

2.2.2

2.23

General information

Gadaa Bank SC ("GB or the Bank") is a private commercial Bank domiciled in Ethiopia. The Bank was
established on 26 April 2022 in accordance with the provisions oftthe Commercial code of Ethiopia
of 1243/2021 and the Licensing and Supervision of Banking Business Proclamation No. 592/2008.
The Bank's registered office is Kirkos Sub-city wereda 03, House # 745 around Gotera in front of
Wangelawit Building, Addis Ababa, Ethiopia

The Bank is principally envisaged to provide diverse range of financial products and services to a
Wholesale, retail and Small and Medium Enterprises (SME) clients base in Ethiopia Market; both for
conventional and interest free banking(IFB) customers.

1
Summary of significant accounting policies

Introduction to summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

Ine nnancial statements Tor the year ended 3U June, ZUZ3 (the rinancial Statements) have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and IFRS
Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The financial
statements comply with IFRS adopted for the first time as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB). Additional information required by National regulations is included where

annronriate.
The financial statements comprises;

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Changes in Equity

Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

Statement of compliance
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical

accounting estimates. It also requires Director to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Bank's accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the financial
statements in the period the a8sumptions changed. Director believes that the underlying
assumptions are appropriate and that the Bank's financial statements therefore present the financial
position and results fairly. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 3.
These are the first set of financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by IASB.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern principle under
the historical cost concept, except for the following;

1. Fair value through other comprehensive income and fair value through profit and loss, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) and investment properties measured
at fair value .

I1. Assets held for sale - measured at fair value less cost of disposal; and
1I1.The liability for defined benefit obligations recognized at the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the fair value of the plan assets and plan assets measured at fair value.

All values are rounded to the nearest thousand, except when otherwise indicated. The financial
statements are presented in thousands of Ethiopian Birr (Birr' 000).

Going concern

The Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. For this
reason the managements continue to adopt going concern assumption in preparing the financial
statements. The current credit facilities and adequate resources of the company provide sufficient
funds to meet the present ’i-eqpirementé’nf its existing businesses and operations.

\
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2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented on these
financial statements and have been applied cons‘stentiy by the bank.

New standards, amendments, interpretations effective and adopted during the year

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 July 2023 and earlier applications arf permitted and have not been applied

in preparing these financial statements.

Effective Date

[New Standards or amendments

The amendment to IAS 1"Non-current Liabilities with Covenants s January 1,2024
The amendment to IFRS 16 "Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback " January 1,2024
The amendment to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 "Supplier Finance Arrangements” January 1,2024
New, Standard IFRS S1 " General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability- . January 1,2024

related Financial Information”

a2

New Standard IFRS S2 "Climate-related Disclosures” January 1,2024

1. Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (IAS 1)

The amendments to IAS 1 clarify the classification of liabilities as current or non-current, focusing on
an entity's right to defer settlement, particularly when covenants are involved. A liability is classified
as non-current if the entity has a substantive right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after
the reporting date, considering any covenant terms. The amendments require entities to assess
compliance with covenants at the reporting date, and if the right to defer settlement is contingent on
compliance with future covenants within 12 months, entities must disclose this information. These
changes, effective from January 1, 2024, as of the reporting date, the Company has not Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants.

2. Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback Amendments to (IFRS 16)

In September 2022, the Board jssued Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback, which added

subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transaction which became effective in
January 2024. Sale and leaseback transactions is when an entity (the seller-lessee) transfers an asset
to another entity (the buyer-lessor) and leases that asset back from the buyer-lessor, both the seller-
lessee and the buyer-lessor shall account for the transfer contract and the lease.

As of the reporting date, the Company has not entered into any sale and leaseback transactions.
Therefore, the amendments to IFRS 16 regarding the disclosure and accounting treatment for such
transactions do not have an impact on the Company’s financial statements for the current reporting

3. Supplier Finance Arranpaements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7)
L3

As of May 2023, new disclosure requirements have been issued, which take effect on January 1,
2024 which is Supplier finance arrangements, also known as reverse factoring, involve a financial
institution paying an entity’s suppliers on behalf of the entity, with the entity repaying the financial
institution at a later date. Entities are now required to disclose the nature of these arrangements,
provide quantitative information, and explain the impact of these arrangements on the entity’s cash
flows. As of the reporting date, the Company has not entered into such financing arrangements.

4. IFRS S1 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information

IFRS S1 establishes a framework for sustainability-related financial disclosures, focusing on providing
relevant and material information about sustainability risks and opportunities that may affect an
organization's financial performance. It requires entities to disclose their governance structure, risk
management processes, and strategies for addressing sustainability-related issues, emphasizing the
need for materiality assessments tailored to stakeholder needs. Key disclosures should include an
overview of significant sustainability risks and opportunities, metrics and targets for performance
evaluation, and an analysis of their impact on financial health. However, it is important to note that
we did not apply IFRS S1 in our 2024 annual report.
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2.4

a)

5. IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures

The IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards are developed by the International Sustainability
Standards Board (ISSB), an independent standard-setting body within the IFRS Foundation. The
objective of IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures is to disclose information about climate-related risks
and opportunities that could reasonably be expected to affect the entity’s cash flows, its access to
finance or cost of capital over the short, medium or long term. It is collectively referred to as ‘climate-
related risks and opportunities that could reasonably be expected to affect the entity’s prospects. An
entity shall apply this Standa{d for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
The bank has not been applied in preparing these financial statements of 2024. ¢

The IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards are developed by the International Sustainability

Standards Board (ISSB), an independent standard-setting body within the IFRS Foundation. The

objective of IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures is to disclose information about climate-related risks

and opportunities that could reasonably be expected to affect the entity’s cash flows, its access to

finance or cost of capital over the short, medium or long term. It is collectively referred to as ‘climate:

related risks and opportunities that could reasonably be expected to affect the entity’s prespects. An

entity shall apply this Standard for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. "
The bank has not been applied in preparing these financial statements of 2024.

New Standards, amendments, interpretations issued but not yet effective.

The following accounting pronouncements were not effective as of June 30, 2024 and therefore have
not been applied in preparing these financial statements.

New Standards or amendments Effective Date
Amendments to IAS 21 “Lack of Exchangeability” 01-Jan-25
Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 “the Classification and Measurement of Financial
" 01-Jan-26
Instruments
New Standard IFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements” 01-Jan-27
New Standard IFRS 19 “Subsidiaries without Public Accountability” 01-Jan-27

1. Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21)

The amendments to IAS 21, "The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates," address the
concept of "Lack of Exchangeability." This refers to a situation where an entity is unable to exchange
its currency for another currency at a prevailing market rate due to restrictions or limitations.

2. Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial
The Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 refine the classification and measurement of financial

instruments for clarity and consistency. Key changes include clarifications on the SPPI (Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest) test, particularly regarding ESG-linked cash flow variability, and
clearer guidelines on derecognition and modification of financial assets and liabilities. The

# amendments also refine the treatment of equity instruments at FVPCI and offer more precise

guidance on impairment models and the fair value option for financial liabilities, focusing on credit
risk reporting.

3. IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures is a proposed standard aimed at
reducing the disclosure burden for subsidiaries that apply full IFRS but do not have public
accountability (i.e., they are not publicly traded or financial institutions). It allows these subsidiaries
to adopt simplified disclosure requirements while still following full IFRS recognition and
measurement rules. The objective is to lower the cost and complexity of preparing financial
statements without compromising the usefulness of the information for stakeholders like parent
companies and auditors. This proposal is part of IASB's effort to streamline financial reporting for
non-public entities.

4. IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements s

FRS 18 is a new accounting standard that outlines the presentation and disclosure requirements for
financial statements. It mandates a statement of financial position at the beginning of the preceding
period if there are retrospective adjustments or reclassifications. Entities can use alternative names
for main statements and customize totals, subtotals, and line items, as long as they accurately
represent the characteristics of the items. The standard also provides guidelines for grouping
information and determining whether to include details in primary financial statements or as note.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Bank operates ('the functional currency'). The functional currency and
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b)

2.5

2.5.1

2.5.2

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the translation at exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in currenciés other than the Bank's functional currency are
recognized in profit or loss within other (loss)/income. Monetary items denominated in foreign
currency are translated using the closing rate as &t the reporting date.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analyzed between translation differentes resulting from changes in the
amortized cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortized cost are recognized in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets measured at fair value, such as equities
classified as available for sale, are included in other comprehensive incore.

Recognition of income and expenses

Interest income and expense are recognized in the income statement using the effective interest method
for all interest-bearing financial instruments, except for those classified at fair value through profit or loss.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or liability
and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the expected life of the financial
instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset (before adjusting for expected credit losses) or to the amortized cost of the financial
liability, including early redemption fees, and related penalties, and premiums and discounts that are an
integral part of the overall return.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty.

The Bank, earns income from interest on loans given for domestic trade and services, building and
construction, manufacturing, agriculture merchandise and personal loans. Other incomes includes
margins on letter of credits and guarantees.

¢
Interest and similar income and expense ’
For all government bills and bonds and interest bearing financial assets measured at amortized cost

interest income or expense ig§ recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR), which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR), but not
future credit losses.

The carrying amount of the government bills and bonds is adjusted if the Bank revises its
estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original EIR
and the change in carrying amount is recorded as 'Interest and similar income' for financial assets
and 'Interest and similar expense' for financial liabilities.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a Bank of similar financial assets has been reduced due to
an impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognized using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Fees and commission income and expense

Fees and commission income and expenses that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial
asset or liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate. Other fees and
commission income (commission on foreign transactions, advising commission, extension commission) are
recognized as the related services are performed. '

When a loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.

Other fees and commissi xpenses relates mainly to transaction and service fees are expensed as the
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253

25.4

255

2.5.6

2.6

2.6.1

Interest paid on borrowings, deposits and others

Interest paid on borrowings and deposits are calculated on 365 days basis (except fqr some treasury
instruments which are calculated on 364 days basis) in a year and recognized on accrual basis. Interest
on lease liabilities are accounted for as per IFRS 16 Leases.

Dividend income + ;
This is recognized when the Bank’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when

the shareholders approve and declare the dividend.

Rental income
Rental income in respect of operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms

on ongoing leases

'.
Foreign exchange revaluation gains or losses "

These are gains and losses arising on settlement and translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the functional currency’s spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.
This amount is recognized in the income statement and it is further broken down into realized and

unrealized portion.
The monetary assets and liabilities include financial assets within Cash and cash equivalent, foreign

currency deposits.
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset shall be classified either as measured at either amortized cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

1. Financial instruments measured at amortized cost

The Bank shall measure a financial asset at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated at FVTPL:

> The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
¢

flows;
> The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI). N .

II.Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

A debt instrument shall be measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated at FVTPL:

>The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets;

>The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI1.

On initial recognition, an equity investment that is held for trading shall be classified at FVTPL. However,
for equity investment that is not held for trading, the Bank may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income (OCI). This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

III.Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss

All other financial assets that do not meet the classification criteria at amortized cost or FVOCI, above,
shall be classified as measured at FVTPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Bank may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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Business model assessment
The Bank shall make an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a

portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to

4

management. The information considered includes:
>The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In

particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a
particuler interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the
liabilities that are funding those assets or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

>How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Bank’s management;

>The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed;

>How managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed.or the contractual cash flows collected); and

>The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in
isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the bank’s stated objective for managing the
financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realized.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis shall be measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held
both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

Financial assets shall not be reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after

the Bank changes its business model for managing financial assets.
Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ shall be defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ shall be defined as the consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for
other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Bank considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This gnc[udes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meét this condition. In
making the assessment, the Bank considers:

- Contingent events that would change the*amount and timing of cash flows;

- Leverage features;

- Prepayment and extension terms;
- Terms that limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and

- Features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates).
Reclassifications
If the business model under which the bank holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected
are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply
prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that
results in reclassifying the bank. During the current financial yeér and previous accounting period there
was no change in the business model under which the bank holds financial assets. Therefore no

reclassifications were made. The table below summarizes the accounting treatment on reclassification:
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Accounting for Asset reclassification

From To Requirement

Measure fair value at reclassification date and recognize difference
Amortized Cos{FVTPL , between fair value and amortized cost in profit or loss.

]

Fair value at the reclassification date becomes the new gross carrying
FVTPL Amortized Cost |amount.

™ vl = : - - -
Amortized Cos{FvoCI Oce:a]niure air value at reclassification date and recognize any difference in

Cumulative gain or losses previously recognized in OCl is removed from
FVOCI Amortized Cost |equity and applied against the fair value of the financial asset at the

reclassification date.

Asset continues to be measured at fair value but subsequent gains and
FVTPL FVOCI losses are recognized in OCI rather than profit or loss.

Asset continues to be recognized at fair value and the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified

FVOCI FVTPL
from equity to profit 9 loss.

*
Derecognition of financial assets

The Bank shall derecognize a financial asset when:

>The contractual right to the cash flows from the financial asset expires , or

> It transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred; or

>Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not

retain control of the financial asset.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the

carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognized in OCI shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Any cumulative gain/loss recognized in OCI in respect of equity investment securities designated as at
FVOCI shall not be recognized in profit or loss on derecognition of such securities.

Any interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the
Bank shall be recognized as a separate asset or liability.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment charge in the income statement includes the change in expected credit losses and
including those arising from fraud. Expected credit losses are recognized for loans and advances to
customers and banks, other financial assets held®at amortized cost, financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, and certain loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.
Expected credit losses are calculated as an unbiased and probability-weighted estimate using an
appropriate probability of default, adjusted to take into account a range of possible futurg economic
scenarios, and applying this to the estimated exposure of the bank at the point of default after taking into
account the value of any collateral held, repayments, or other mitigants of loss and including the impact of
discounting using the effective interest rate.

At each reporting date, the Bank shall assess whether there is objective evidence that financial assets
(except equity investments), other than those carried at FVTPL, are impaired.

The Bank shall recognize loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on the following financial
instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

- Financial assets that are debt instruments;

- Lease receivables;

- Financial guarantee contracts issued; and

- Loan commitments issued.

No impairment loss shall be recognized on equity investments.
The Bank shall measure loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following,
which are measured as 12-month ECL:
>Debt investment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
>Other financial instruments (other than lease receivables) on which credit risk has not increased

significantly since their initial recognition.

Loss allowances for lease receivables shall always be measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

12-month ECL is the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are

possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which a 12-month ECL is

recognized are referred to as ‘Stage 1 financial instruments.

Life-time ECL is the ECL that resuit from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
irEtTUments hich a lifetime ECL is recognized but which are not credit-impaired
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. 1t shall be measured as follows:

- For financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date (stage 1 and 2): as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Bank in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive);

- For financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (stage 3): as the difference between
the gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows;

- For undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due to the bank, if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the Bank

expects to receive; and
- For financial guarantee contracts: as the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts

kot sl . mobh o ki e 3

Restructured financial assets

Where the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced
with 3 new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then the Bank shall assess whether the
financial asset should be derecognized and ECL are measured as follows:

>t If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing gsset, then the expected
cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the
existing asset.

>If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fair
value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its
derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset
that are discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using the original

effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the Bank shall assess whether financial assets carried at amortized cost, debt
financial assets carried at FVOCI, and finance lease receivables are credit-impaired (referred to as "Stage 3
financial assets’).
A financial asset shall be considered ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

>Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
>A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
>The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms that the Bank would not consider
otherwise;

>1t is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

>The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficuities.
A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition shall be considered to
be credit-impair unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving cantractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, a retail loan that is overdue for
90 days or more shall be considered credit-impaired even when the regulatory definition of default is

different. . ]

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL shall be presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

>For financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets;

>For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a provision; where a financial
instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the Bank cannot identify the ECL on
the loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn component: The Bank presents a
combined loss allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction from
the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross
amount of the drawn component is presented as a provision; and

>For debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognized in the statement of financial
position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the loss allowance shall
be disclosed and is recognized in the fair value reserve.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities shall be written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the amount in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when
the Bank determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. This assessment shall be carried out at
the individual asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off shall be included in ‘impairment losses on financial
instruments’ in the statement of profit or loss and OCI. Financial assets that are written off coi till be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Bank’s procedures for recovery-0

due.
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(vi)

(vii)

2.6.2

Financial guarantees
Financial guarantees; are contracts that require the Bank to make specified payments to reimburse the

holder for a loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. 1

Types of Letter of Guarantees Issued by the bank:-

« Bid bond

« Suppliers’ Credit Guarantee

« Advance Payment Guarantee '
« Performance Bond

« Retention Guarantee

« Customs Duty Guarantee

Initial accounting for financial guarantees by the issuer
The Bank initially measures financial guarantee contracts at fair value. If the financial guarantee contract

was issued in a stand-alone arm's length transaction to an unrelated party, then its fair value at inception
is likely to equal the premium received unless there is evidence to the contrary

Subsequent measurement

Financial guarantees are subsequently measured at the higher of:

— the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and

—the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognized in

accordance with the principles of IFRS 15

Non-integral financial guarantee contracts
The Bank shall assess whether a financial guarantee contract held is an integral element of a financial

asset that is accounted for as a component of that instrument or is a contract that is accounted for

separately.
Where the Bank determines that the guarantee is an integral element of the financial asset, then any

premium payable in connection with the initial recognition of the financial asset shall be treated as a
transaction cost of acquiring it. The Bank shall consider the effect of the protection when measuring the

fair value of the debt instrument and when measuring ECL.
Where the Bank determines that the guarantee is not an integral element of the debt instrument, then it
shall recognize an asset representing any prepayment of guarantee premium and a right to compensation

for credit losses.

Colla:teral valuation
¢

The Bank seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral
comes in various forms such as ¢ash via Bank guarantees and real estate. The fair value of collateral is
generally assessed, at a minimum, at inceptidn and based on the Bank's reporting schedule. '

To the extent possible, the Bank uses active market data for valuing financial assets, held as collateral.
Other financial assets which do not have a readily determinable market value are valued using models.

Collateral repossessed

Repossessed collateral represents financial and non-financial assets acquired by the Bank in settlement of
overdue loans. The Bank’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset is best used for its internal
operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be used for internal operations are initially recognized
at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original secured asset and included in
the relevant assets depending on the nature and the Bank’s intention in respect of recovery of these
assets, and are subsequently remeasured and accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies for
these categories of assets. Assets that are determined better to be sold are immediately transferred to
assets held for sale at their fair value at the repossession date in line with the Bank's policy.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of other financial liabilities, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Bank's financial liabilitiesZinclude customer’s deposit, margin held s edit and other
liabilities. Interest expenditure_is recognized in interest and similar expeps&,p 3
. i \
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Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their.classification. as described below:
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial instruments issued by the Bank, that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss but
are classified as financial liabilities at amortized cost, where the substance of the contractual arrangement
results in the Bank having an obligation either to deliver cash or anogher financial asset to the holder, or
to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of own equity shares.

After initial measurement, financial liabilities at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR). Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on the issue and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Bank’s financial liabilities carried at amortized cost comprise of customer depasits, margin held on
letter of credit and other liabilities. "

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognized when they have been redeemed or otherwise extinguished.

2.6.3 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position

where The Bank has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Bank has also entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow for
the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as Bankruptcy or the termination of a

contract.

2.7 Interest free Financing and investment products

Gadaa Bank S.c has begun interest free banking services in June 6, 2023, focusing on deposits, financing,
as well as investment. Services include Wadiya accounts for cash, Wadiya current accounts for cheques,
Muharaba investment savings account and Haji Umra account to save for the pilgrimage to Mecca, Saudi

Arahia
Among its financing services are Muharaba financing, where the bank delivers any good after

receiving the full money and specification of the good from its customer; Ejjra financing, in which the

customer renders payment gradually after the bank delivers the good; Estisna financing for

construction, as well as Selam financing, where the bank gives agricultural inputs to take the
L}

equivalent amount after harvest. .
The other area of interest free banking is investment and includes Musharaka investment, which is a joint

venture between the bank and the customer.
Definition of key Terms
1. Wadiah Saving Account

Wadiah is amanah (safe custody based on trusts) where IFBW shall be fully responsible for the deposited
amount to be available on demand.

Wadia (safe keeping) account is an account at which a customer deposits its fund and IFBW guarantees
refund of the entire amount of deposit, or any part of the outstanding amount, without the obligation to
pay any additional return on it, when the account holder demands it.

2. Wadia Demand Deposit Account

Wadia demand deposit account Is the type of deposit that do not give any returns to the depositor and
can be withdrawn by the depositor up on demand. For this deposits the relationship between the IFBW

and the depositor is that of debtor and creditor.
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3. Hadji-Umraha Saving Account

Hadji-Umraha Saving account is safe custody based on trusts of the customer to be deposited regularly
for the purpose of travelling to Mecca Medina, where IFBW shall be fully responsible for the deposited
amount to be available on demand. Haji-Umura Savings Account is an account which is used to make

deposit by customer for the purpose of Haji-Umura pilgrimage

4. Unrestricted Investment Accounts

It is a type of deposits where full discretion is given to the IFBW to utilize the fund to finance and /or
invest in income generating assets.

5. Restricted Investment Accounts

It is a type of deposits where investment account holder provide specific investment mandate to the
IFBW to utilize the fund to finance and/or invest in specific income generating assets. i
*

6. Ijarah
It is a contract between IFBW and customer in which IFBW transfers the usufruct of an asset (right to use
and drive profit from a property belonging to another, provided that the property remain
uninjured and undiminished) but not its ownership to customer for an agreed period at an agreed

rental/lease payment.

7. Istisna'a

It is a sale contract between the ultimate purchaser and seller whereby the seller, based on an order from
the purchaser, undertakes to have manufactured/build the subject matter of the contract according to
specification and sell it to the purchase for an agreed upon price and method of settlement whether that
at time of contracting, by installments or deferred to a specific future time.

7.1 Parallel Istisna'a

It is a parallel sale contract concluded by the seller with a builder to fulfill his/her contractual obligations
in the first Istisna'a contract.

8. Murahaba (Cost Plus)
[

It is a sale of goods with an agreed upon profit mark up on the cost between customer and IFBW whereby
. IFBW purchases the goods ordered by a customer frgm a third party and then sells these goods to the
same customer. Y

9, Mudarabah

It is a partnership between investment account holders as providers of funds and entrepreneur as
Mudarabah whereby both parties agreed to share profit as per their agreement and the losses being born
by the provider of fund provided that the loss is not occurred due to negligence and mismanagement on

the part of entrepreneur (Mudarib).

10. Mutharika (joint venture)

It is a partnership between IFBW and its customer whereby each party contributes to the capital of
partnership in equal or varying degrees to establish a new project or sharé in existing ong, on the basis of
constant or diminishing ownership, with objective of sharing profit as per their agreement and loss in
accordance with their capital contributions.

Page 17




-

11. Salam

It is a purchase of a commodity for future delivery in exchange for immediate payment according to
specified conditions or sale of a commaodity for future delivery in exchange for immediaEe payment.

11.1 Parallel Salam

2.8

2.9.

It is a Salam contract whereby tree seller depends, for executing his /her obligation, on receiving what is
due to him/her-in his/her capacity as purchaser-from a sale in a previous Salam contract, without making
the execution of the second Salam contract dependent on the execution of the first Salam contract.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of
acquisition, including cash in hand, deposits held at call with Banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

’

Property, plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and

equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Bank
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in income statement as incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is

derecognized.

Property and equipment are derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset or at the expiration of a lease contract for right of
use assets. Equipment are determined by comparing the net proceeds from disposal Gains and losses

aricina An dienncal Af an itam nf nranartu and with tha rarruvina amaont ~f tha item and ara rarnnnized

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
[ ]

Asset class _Depreciation rate (vears) Residual values (%)
Buildings - 50 ' 5%.
Motor vehicles 10 5%
Furniture & fittings 10-20 1%
Computer and data storage s 1%
Equipment 5-10 1%

The Bank commences depreciation when the asset is available for use.
Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated as these assets are not yet available for use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date. Changes in the expected useful life, residual values or methods of depreciation are
accounted for as changes in accounting estimates.
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2.10

2.11

2.12

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are
not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in income statement in the period in which the
expenditure is incurred .

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life. The amortitation period and the amortization
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.
Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortization period or methodology, as
appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expenses on
intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate item in the income statement.

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives,.as follows:

» Swift software - 6 years
« Core Banking software - 6 years
« Mobile and Agent Banking software - 6 years

Non-current assets (or disposal Banks) held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal Banks) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets and investment property that are carried at fair value and contractual rights under
insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognized for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal Bank)
to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognized for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to
sell of an asset (or disposal Bank), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously
recognized. A gain or loss not previously recognized by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or
disposal Bank) is recognized at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal Bank) are not 'depreciated or amortized
while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal Bank classified as held for sale continue to be recognized.

¢ -
Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal Bank classified as held for sale
are presented separately from the other assets in the statement of financial position. The liabilities of a
disposal Bank classified as held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the statement of
financial position.
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Bank assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Bank estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or Banks of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable

amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or
other available fair value indicators. The Bank bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and
forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Bank's CGUs to which the individual
assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the
fifth year.
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2.13

(a)

(b)

2.14

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there
is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Bank estimates the asset’s or CGU'’s recpverable amount. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impgirment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the income statement.

Other assets

Other assets are generally defined as claims held against other entities for the future receipt of money.
The other assets in the Bank's financial statements include the following:
*
L
Prepayment .

Prepayments are payments made in advance for services to be enjoyed in future. The amount is initially
capitalized in the reporting period in which the payment is made and subsequently amortized over the
period in which the service is to be enjoyed.

Other receivables
Other receivables are recognized upon the occurrence of event or transaction as they arise and cancelled
when payment is received. The Bank's other receivables are rent receivables and other receivables from

debtors.
Fair value measurement

Fair value under IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement (‘'IFRS 13') is defined as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market condition (i.e. an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities is based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. This includes listed equity
securities and quoted debt instruments on exchanges (for example, NSE, BVRM, GSE) and quotes from
approved bond market makers.
L ]
+

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer or brokery and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. If the above criteria are not met, the market is regarded as
being inactive. Indications that a market is inactive are when there is a wide bid-offer spread or
significant increase in the bid-offer spread or there are few recent transactions.

For all other financial instruments, fair value is determined using valuation technigues. In these
techniques, fair values are estimated from observable data in respect of similar financial instruments,
using models to estimate the present value of expected future cash flows or other valuation techniques,
using inputs existing at the dates of the consolidated statement of financial position.

In cases when the fair value of unlisted equity instruments cannot be determined reliably, the
instruments are carried at cost less impairment. The fair value for loans and advances as well as liabilities
to banks and customers are determined using a present value model on the basis of contractually agreed
cash flows, taking into account credit quality, liquidity and costs. -

The fair values of contingent liabilities and irrevocable loan commitments correspond to their carrying
amounts.
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2.15

(a)

(b)

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing

the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, baskd on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable.

*
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the f}nanciai statements on a recufring basis, the Bank
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Bank's Director determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement,
such as available-for-sale financial assets.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Bank has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

Employee benefits

The Bank operates various post-employment schemes, including both defined benefit and defined
contribution pension plans and post employment benefits.

Defined contribution plan
The Bank operates two defined contribution plans;

i) pension scheme in line with the provisions of Ethiopian private organization employees pension
proclamation No.1268/2022. Funding under the scheme is 7% and 11% by employees and the Bank
respectivel§; ¢
i) provident fund contribution, funding under this scheme is 8% and 12% by employees and the Bank
respectively; based on the employees' salary. Employer's contributions to this scheme are charged to
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they relate.

Defined benefit blan

The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected

unit credit method.

The liability recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that
are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognized in the income statement in employee
benefit expense, except where included in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the defined benefit
obligation resulting from employee service in the current year, benefit changes curtailments and
settlements.

Past-service costs are recognized immediately in income.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to eguity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
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{c)

(d)

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable to executive directors when employment is terminated by the Bank
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Bank recognizes termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility
of withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary

redundancv.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans "

The Banks recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Bank recognizes a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has

created a constructive obligation.

Provisions ¢

Provisions are recognized when there is a present ol;Iigation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Bank
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in income statement net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as other operating expenses.

Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options or to the acquisition of a
business are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Earnings per share
¢

The Bank presents basic earnings per share for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share are
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted

average number of shares outstandingfduring the period.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in
equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Bank receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal
amounts and released to income statement over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of

the benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.
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2.20 Leases

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Under IFRS 16, a lessor is required to determine whether a lease is a finance or operating lease. A lessee
is'not required to make this determination. |

Bank as a lessee

The bank assesges at initiation of a contract whether the contract is, or contains a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of
consideration, then the bank consider the contract as a lease contract. The bank as a lessee applies a
single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases, or, and lease of

low value of assets.

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the bank. Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. The lease bayments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the leasetif that
rate can be determined, or the banks incremental borrowing rate 4ppropriate for the right-of-use asset
arising from the lease. Lease payments are allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. Payments associated with
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of twelve months or less. Low-value assets
comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

Right-of-use assets (ROU):

The bank recognizes the right-of-use assets (RoU) at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date
the underlying asset is available for use). RoU assets are measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment of lcsses and adjusted for any measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
ROU assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct cost incurred, and lease
payment made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the lease term, or remaining period of the lease term.
The bank assessed all lease contracts active in 2023 and recognized as RoU of assets of all leases, except
short term and low value of assets as per the Banks’ own policy set as per IAS 16 and IFRS 19.

Lease Liabilities (Bank as a lessee):
At the commencement of the lease, the bank recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of

lease payments to be made over the lease term. THe lease payments include fixed and variable lease
payment (less any adjustment for initial payment), and amount is expected to be paid under residual
value of guarantees.

Bank as a lessor
Assets leased to customers are classified as finance leases if the lease agreements transfer substantially

all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee but not necessarily legal title. All other leases are
classified as operating leases. When assets are subject to finance leases, the present value of the lease
payments, together with any unguaranteed residual value, is recognized as a receivable, net of allowances
for expected credit losses, within loans and advances to banks and customers. The difference between the
gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognized as unearned finance lease income.
Finance lease income is recognized in interest income over the term of the lease using the net investment
method (before tax) so as to give a constant rate of return on the net investment in the leases.
Unguaranteed residual values are reviewed regularly to identify any impairment.

Operating lease assets are included within property, plant and equipment at cost and depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, which equates to the lives of the leases, after taking into account anticipated
residual values. Operating lease rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease. The Group evaluates non-lease arrangements such as outsourcing and similar contracts to
determine if thel Jmadease which is then accounted for separately.
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2.21

(a)

(b)

3.1

' !
Income taxation
Current income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting petiod in Ethiopia. Director periodically evaluates positions taken in tax.returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset o liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the tirhe of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or.loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the

deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset when they arise in the same tax reporting Bank and
where there is both the legal right and the intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously.
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates, which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Bank’s
accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.

*This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and

major sources of estimation uncertainty. Detailed information about each of these estimates and
judgements is included in the related notes together with information about the basis of calculation for
each affected line item in the financial statements.

The preparation of the Bank’s financial statements requires Director to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Bank’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
« Capital Management Note 4.5
_ Financial risk Management and policies Note 4.1
 Sensitivity analyses disclosures Note 4.5.2

Judgements

In the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies, Directors have made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.
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2.2

3.21

Estimates and assumptions uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Bank based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
beyond the control of the Bank. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Impairment losses on loans and advances (on balance

sheet)
The estimation of potential credit losses is inherently uncertain and depends upon many factors, including

general economic conditions, changes in individual customers’ circumstances, structural changes within
industries that alter competitive positions and other external factors such as legal and regulatory
requirements. ¢ i

Impairment is measured for all accounts that are identified as nonperforming. All relevant considerations
that have a bearing on the expected future cash flows are taken into account which include but not
limited to future business prospects for the customer, realizable value of securities, the Group's position
relative to other claimants and the existence of any court injunctions placed by the borrower. Subjective
judgments are made in this process of cash flow determination both in value and timing and may vary
from one person to another and team to team. Judgments may also change with time as new information
becomes available.

The bank reviews its loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether an allowance for
impairment should be recognized in profit or loss. In particular, judgment by the Directors is required in
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of allowance
required. Such estimates are based on the assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may
differ, resulting in future changes in the allowance.

The bank also makes a collective impairment measurement for exposures which, although not specifically

- identified as non-performing, have an inherent risk;of default. The portfolio constitutes a large number of

loan and advances account cutting across various industries. Assets with similar risk characteristics are
ranked together for the purpose of determining the collective impairment in the bank.

The following are key estimations that the directors have used in the process of applying the banks
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in financial

statements:

I. Probability of default: probability of default (PD) estimates the possibility of a loan facility moving
from the performing status (stage 1) to the non-performing status (stage 3). Por impairment purposes,
the PD parameter is estimated using a transition matrix multiplication approach that estimates the
movement of loan amounts from one bugket to the next between two subsequent time periods.

II.The loss given default (LGD) is a measure of how much (in form of a percentage) the Bank is
expected to lose in the event that default events occur. This can be estimated using either collateral, in
instances where the customer has collateral against the debt instrument that they have undertaken with
the Bank or an analysis of the historical cash collections after the default event, for cases that the debt

instrument is not secured.

IIL.Exposure at Default (EAD):EAD modelling estimates annual outstanding exposure on each loan
facility over the remaining lifetime from the reporting period. The EAD for each period is calculated based
on the contractual cash flows of each loan account using the reducing balance method.

The exposure at default assumed by management to be the mid year EAD for facilities with monthly and
quarterly repayment schedules. This is to reflect the assumption of uniform distribution of default events
throughout the year. For semi - annual and annual repayment schedules, exposure at default will be
assumed by management to be the reporting date EAD.

IV.significant increase in credit risk (SICR: SICR is based on migration from stage 1 to stage 2. As
per the Bank’s loan listing classification, these are loans that experience migration from “pass” to “Special
Mention” as a result of arrears of over 30 days past. due.
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3.2.2

3.2.3

3.2.4

3.2.5

3.2.6

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
Whan tha fair valuac of finaneial accete and financial liahilities recarded in the statement of financial

position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are

taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
offinancial instruments. See Note 4.6.3 for further disclosures. ;

Retirement benefits

The Bank have a comprehensive remuneration system based on our HR policy. It combines a fixed salary
that reflects the individual’s role and level of responsibility along with other benefits. In addition, the Bank
also offers provident fund, gratuity, staff loan and other benefits such as banking products and services

and medical benefits for employees and dependents.

The cost of the' defined benefit pension plan is determined using actuarial valuation. The actuarial
valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future
salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases.

The discount rate reflects the estimated timing of benefit payments. In practice, an entity often achieves
this by applying a single weighted average discount rate that reflects the estimated timing and amount of
benefit payments and the currency in which the benefits are to be paid.

Inflation rate : the majority of the plans’ benefit obligations are linked to inflation both in deferment and
once in payment. Higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities although this will be materially offset by
holdings of inflation-linked gilts and, in most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place

to protect against extreme inflation.

Depreciation and carrying value of property, plant and equipment

The estimation of the useful lives of assets is based on Director’s judgement. Any material adjustment to
the estimated useful lives of items of property and equipment will have an impact on the carrying value of

these items.

Property and equipment are depreciated over its useful life taking into account residual values, where
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary
depending on number of factors. In reassessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation and
maintenancg programs are taken into account which involves extensive subjective judgment. Residual
value assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remafning life of the asset and
projected disposal values.

L]

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the
next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Bank is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as
the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and
the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences
arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions,
could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The amount of such
provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing
interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant Director judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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4 Financial risk management

4 Introduction

This note explains the Bank’s exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the Bank’s future financial performance. The
Bank has documented financial risk management policies. These policies set out the Bank’s overall business strategies and its risk
management philosophy. The Bank’s overall financial risk management programme seeks to minimize potential adverse effects of
financial performance of the Bank. The Board of Directors provides written principles for overall financial risk management and written
policies covering specific areas, such as credit risk, market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk)
and liquidity risk . Such written policies are reviewed annually by the Board of Directors and periodic reviews are undertaken to ensure

that the Bank’s policy guidelines are complied with. Risk management Is carried out by the Bank Risk team under the policies approved

by the Board of Directors.
Risk is inherent in the Bank’s activities, but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring,
*

subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Bank’s continuing profitability and each

individual within the Bank is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Bank is exposed to credit risk,

liquidity risk and market risk.

The independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the environment,, technology and industry. The

Bank's policy is to monitor those business risks through the Bank's strategic planning process.

4.1.1 Risk management structure
The Board of Directors have the ultimate responsibility for establishing and ensuring the effective functioning of the Risk and Compliance

Management activities of the Bank.

The board risk and compliance management sub-committee has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk strategy and
implementing principles, frameworks, policies and risk appetite. It is also responsible for performing compliance monitoring and testing,

preparing periodic risk and compliance exposure reports to executive management and the board of directors.

The Executive Management is responsible for translating and implementing the Bank’s risk management strategy, priorities and policies

as approved by the Board of Directors
13

¢
The Bank’s policy is that risk management processes throughout the Bank are assessed periodically by the management. This will help

to adequately capture risk exposure, aggregate exposure of risk types and incorporate short run as well as long run impact on the Bank.

i
&

4.1.2 Risk measurement and reporting systems

The Bank’s risks are measured using a method that reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal circumstances and
unexpected losses, which are an estimate of the uitimate actual loss based on statistical models. The models make use of probabilities
derived from historical experience, adjusted to reflect the economic environment. The Bank also runs worst-case scenarios that would

arise in the event that extreme events which are unlikely to occur do, in fact, occur.

Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based on limits established by the Bank. These limits reflect the business strategy
and market environment of the Bank as well as the level of risk that the Bank Is willing to accept, with additional emphasis on selected

regions. In addition, the Bank's policy is to measure and monitor the overall risk bearing capacity in relation to the aggregate risk

exposure across all risk types and activities.
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a)

b)

c)

4.1.3 Risk mitigation
Risk controls and mitigants, identified and approved for the Bank, are documented for existing and new processes and systems.

The adequacy of these mitigants is tested on a periodic basis through administration of control self-assessment questionnaires, using a

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual

obligations, and arises principally from the Bank’s loans and advances to customers and other banks and other financial assets.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through periodic analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to determine their
capacity to meet principal and interest thereon, and restructuring such limits as appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also mitigated,
in part, by obtaining collateral, commercial and personal guarantees.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower,
or Banks of borrowers, and to term of the financial instrument and economic sectors.

The National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE) sets credit risk limit for a single borrower, one related party and all related parties to not exceed
25%,15% and 35% of Bank’s total capital amount as of the reporting quarterly period respectively,

Credit management is conducted as per the risk management policy and guideline approved by the board of directors and the Risk
Management Committees. Such policies are reviewed and modified periodically based on changes and expectations of the markets

where the Bank operates, regulations, and other factors.

4,2.1 Management of credit risk
In measuring credit risk of loans and receivables to various counterparties, the Bank considers the character and capacity of the

obligor to pay or meet contractual obligations, current exposures to the counter party/obligor and its likely future developments, credit
history of the counterparty/obligor; and the likely recovery ratio in case of default obligations-value of collateral and other ways out.
Our credit exposure comprises wholesale and retail loans and receivables which are developed to reflect the needs of our customers.
The Bank's policy is to lend principally on the basis of our customer’s repayment capacity through quantitative and qualitative
evaluation. However we ensure that our loans are backed by collateral to reflect the risk of the obligors and the nature of the facility.

In the estimation of credit risk, the Bank estimate the following parameters:

Probability of Defauit

This is the probability that an obligor or counterparty will default over a given period, usually one year. This can be calculated on
portfalio by portfolio basis or collectively depending on availability of historical data.

Loss Given Default
Loss Given Default is defined as the portion of the loan determined to be irrecoverable at the time of loan default (1 - recavery rate).

Our methods for estimating LGD includes both quantitative and qualitative factors.

Exposure at Default

This represents the amount that is outstanding at the point of default. Its estimation includes the drawn amount and expected

utilization of the undrawn commitment at default.

4.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement

The loss allowance recognized in the period is impacted by a variety of factors, as described below: .
Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due to financial instruments experiencing significant increases{or
decreases) of credit risk or becoming credit-impaired in the period, and the consequent "step up” (or “step down”)
between 12- month and Lifetime ECL;

« Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognized during the period, as well as releases for financial
instruments de-recognized in the period;

« Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs, EADs and LGDs in the period, arising from regular
refreshing of inputs to medels;

« Impacts on the measurement of ECL due to changes made to models and assumptions;

« Discount unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL is measured on a present value basis;

« Financial assets derecognized during the period and write-offs of allowances related to assets that were written

off during the period.

o SCC | "

Ui e ) LY

A er N\
> o A\

v/ 7.9 C \




mg
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i)

iii)

IFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as
summarized below:
I. A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in 'Stage 1’ and has its credit

risk continususly monitored by the bank.
[I. If a SICR since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to 'Stage 2' but is not yet

deemed to be credit impaired.
111. If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to ‘Stage 3'.
IV. Financialinstruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected
credit losses that result from default events possible within the next 12 months, Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have
their ECL measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

V. A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 9 is that it should consider forward-looking

information.
VI. POCI financial assets are those financial assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is always

measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).

Significant increase in credit risk

The Bank continuously monitors all assets subject to ECL. In order to determine whether an instrumentor a portfolio
of instruments is subject to 12m ECL or LTECL, the Bank assesses whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition.

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Bank considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and avallable without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Bank’s historical
experience and expert credit assessment and including forward-laoking information.

The bank considers a financial instrument to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk when one or more
of the following quantitative, qualitative or backstop criteria have been met.

The quantitative criteria is based on either absolute or relative changes in credit quality. In both cases, the bank is
expected to specify the percentage change, for either 12-month or lifetime PDs in comparison to the corresponding
12-month or lifetime PDs as calculated at origination, respectively, that would indicate a significant increase in credit
risk since origination.

Forward transitions: Days past due
Transition from Stage 1 to Stage 2 is based on the 30 days past due presumption.
Stage Days Past Due
1 D-29
2 30 -89
3 90+

Forward transitions: Watchlist & Restructurn
The bank classifies accounts that are included on their Watchlist or have been restructured as Stage 2 if the
significant driver for the account being watch listed or restructured is due to a significant increase in credit risk.

Forward transitions: Classification
In addition to the days past due, the bank classifies accounts as either ‘Performing’, ‘Substandard’, *‘Doubtful’ or

‘Loss’.
This classificationis considered together with days past due in determining the Stage classification. The table below
summarizes the account classification and days past due.

Classification Days Past Due
Performing (Current + Watchlist) 0-89
Substandard 90- 179
Doubtful 180 - 360
Loss 365+

The internal rating systems described above focus more on credit-quality mapping from the inception of the lending.
Current: relates to assets classified as “Investment Grade” (no evident weakness).

Watchlist: relates to items for which there is evidence of a weakness Iin the financial or operating conditionof  the
obligor which requires management’s close attention.

Substandard: there is a well-defined weakness in the financial or operating condition of the obliger which
jeopardizes the timely repayment of its obligations.

Doubtful: there are all of the weakness that are normally seen in a substandard credit with the additional
characteristic that these weaknesses make full repayment unlikely.

Loss: These assets are considered uncollectible and of such little value that they should be fully written-off,

A backstop is applied and the financial instrument considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit
risk if the borrower is more than 30 days past due on its contractual payments.
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Credit risk grades 3
The Bank allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is determined to be

predictive of the risk of default and applying experienced credit judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using
qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of risk of default. These factors vary depending on the nature
of the exposure and the type of borrower,

Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated such that the risk of default occurring increases exponentially as the
credit risk deteriorates so, for example, the difference in risk of default between credit risk grades 1 and 2 is smaller
than the difference between credit risk grades 2 and 3. Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade on initial
recognition based on available information about the borrower. Exposures are subject to ongoing monitoring, which
may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit risk grade. The monitoring typically involves use of the
fallawing data;

i)  Term loan exposures

Information obtained during periodic review of customer files - e.g. audited financial statements, management
accounts, budgets and projections.

Examples of areas of particular focus are: gross profit margins, financial leverage ratios, debt service coverage,
compliance data from credit reference agencies, press articles, changes in external credit ratings. Actual and
expected significant changes in the political, regulatory and technological environment of the borrower or in its
business activities, Internally collected data on customer behavior, Affordability metrics.

il). Overdraft exposures

Payment record this includes:
- Overdue status as well as a range of variables about payment ratios
- Utilization of the granted limit
- Reguests for and granting of forbearance
- Existing and forecast changes in business, financial and economic conditions

Generating the term structure of PD

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the term structure of PD for exposures. The Bank
collects performance and default information about its credit risk exposures analyzed by type of product and
borrower as well as by credit risk grading. The Bank employs statistical models to analyze the data collected and
generate estimates of the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected to change as a result of

the passage of time.

Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The Bank assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition at each reporting date.
Determining whether an increase in credit risk is significant depends on the characteristics of the financial
instrument and the borrower.

The credit risk may also be deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition based on qualitative
factors linked to the Bank's credit risk management processes that may not otherwise be fully reflected in its
guantitativeanalysis on a timely basis. This will be the case for exposures that meet certain heightened risk criteria,
such as placement on a watch list. Such qualitative factors are based on its expert judgment and relevant historical

experiences.

As a backstop, the Bank considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an asset is
more than 30 days past due. Days past due are determined by counting the number of days since the earliest
elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been received. Due dates are determined without
considering any grace period that might be available to the borrower.

If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk relative to initial recognition, then the
loss allowance on an instrument returns to being measured as 12-month ECL. Some qualitative indicators of an
increase in credit risk, such as delinquency or forbearance, may be indicative of an Increased risk of default that
persists after the indicator itself has ceased to exist. In these cases, the Bank determines a probation period during
which the financial asset is required to demonstrate good behavior to provide evidence that its credit risk has
declined sufficiently. When contractual terms of a loan have been modified, evidence that the criteria for recognizing
lifetime ECL are no longer met includes a history of up-to-date payment performance against the modified
contractual terms.

Definition of default
The Bank considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full, without recourse by the Bank to actions
such as realizing security (if any Is held); - The borrower is more than 90 days past due on any material credit
obligation to the Bank.

- Overdrafts are considered as being past due once the customer has breached an advised limit or been advised of a
limit smaller than the current amount outstanding; or

- It is becoming probable that the borrower will restructure the asset as a result of bankruptcy due to the borrower’s
inability to pay its credit obligations. In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Bank considers indicators
that are:

- Qualitative: e.g. breaches of covenant;

- Quantitative: e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same issuer to the Bank; and

- Based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

- Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may vary over time
to reflect changes in circumstances.

The definition of defaull gety-atigns with that applied by the Bank for regulatory capital purposes.
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(g) Incorporation of forward-looking information in the ECL models

he Bank incarporates for ward-looking information into both t
he assessment of whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased si

gnificantly
For each segment, the Bank formulates three economic scenari |
i , arios: a base case, which is the i
::3:::; i::d one d:fwnslde. For each sector, the base case is aligned with the macroeconomic :3:’2 lsnc:orn:r'l-l:t;o:ng;hv:: ;t;:;tkeiv s i
power of the model, as well as base macroeconomic projections for identified macroeconomic variables for each sem::ra rTn:::r;dzf:hn:

downside scenarios are based on a combination of a
percentage error factor of each sector model i
macroeconomic projections based on a measure of historical macroeconomic volatilities . TR SN LR -

External information considered includes economic data and f F nown as Business Monitor
ly ki a: i
I ter Iauouall an exl:e nai ar d '”dePEJ dent market mtﬂmgeﬂce and research institution. This is in addition to industry -level, semi - annual NPL

brande aeross statistically comparabe sectors,

periodically, the Bank carries out stress testing of more extreme shocks to calibrate its determination of the upside and downsk!er representatlv.e
scenarios. A comprehensive review is performed at least annually on the design of the scenarios by a panel of experts that advises the Bank's
senior management. The Bank has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial instruments
and, using an analysis of historical data, has ted relationships bet macroeconomic variables and credit risk and credit losses.

The key drivers for credit risk for each of the Bank's economic sectors is summarized below:

Sector Macroeconomic factors

Cluster 1 Goods exports, USD
Agriculture
Consumer Loans
Overdraft

Inte Fi narn
Cluster 2
Domestic Trade Services
Mining and Energy .
Transport
Health

Cluster 3 Gross domestic product, current prices (U.S. dollars)
Building and Construction
Hotel and Tourism
Manufacturing and Production

Industry

\Real Estate.
Cluster 4 Goods debit (Imports)
Export
Import
Advance against Import Bills

International Trade

The Bank defined a statistically significant correlation threshold with macroeconomic of 50%. No statistically significant correlation was observed for
Cluster 2, as a result no macroeconomic adjustment is observed.
The economic scenarios used included the following key indicators for Ethiopia !

Indicator 30-Jun-22 30-Jun-23 30-Jun-24

Consumer price index inflation, 2010=100, ave 762.53 935.37 1,070.36
Exports of goods and services, uso 9,395.61 10,688.62 11,817.59
Government domestic debt, LCU 1,601,205.00 1,831,600.00 2,059,995.00
LCU/USD, ave 53.49 56.63 59.46
Nominal GDP, LCU 6,324,877.00 8,013,281.50 9,616,083.50
Private final consumption, LCU 4,706,090.50 5,637,459.50 6,537,715.00
Total domestic demand, LCU 6,554,527.00 7,774,859.50 9,014,880.00
Savings, LCU 1,139,737.50 1,333,875.50 1,571,133.50
Population 122,292,044.00 125,261,131.00 128,250,163.50
Consumer price index inflation, 2010=100, eop 757.19 892.81 999.41
M1, LCU 519,050.00 584,105.00 660,745.00
M2, LCU 1,669,935.00 1,932,335.00 2,247,120.00
Current expenditure, LCU 510,009.50 596,727.50 716,557.00
Goods imports, USD 15,797.50 16,432.50 17,418.50
Goods exports, USD 4,137.00 4,393.00 4,740.00
Current account balance, USD (4,804.00) (4,747.50) (4,995.50)
Import cover months 1,72 1.89 2.02
Total household spending, LCU 5,494,617.24 6,584,552.36 7.636,051.11
Nominal GDP, USD 115,099.81 130,088.57 144,653.20
Real GDP, LCU (2010 prices) 1,031,006,500,000.00 1,097,146,000,000.00 1,172,494,000,000
Real GDP, USD (2010 prices) 71;549.973,629.00 76,139,934,488.00 81,368,948,479
Real GDP per capita, USD (2010 prices) . 566.61 614.13

\I
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rominal GOP, USD (PPP) 358,557,612,057.28 394,406,827,578.31 428,362,843,461
Private final consumption, USD 87,765.78 99,433.70 109,822.61
Private final consumption per capita, USD 0.00 0.00 0.00
Government final consumption, LCU 487,844.00 566,297.50 646,227.00
Government final consumption, USD 9,106.13 9,989.90 10,858.07
Exports of goods and services, LCU 503,898.00 605,980.50 703,534.00
Exports of goods and services per capita, USD 0.00 0.00 0.00
Imports of goods and services, LCU 887,821.00 1,004,878.50 1,106,430.00
Imports of goods and services, USD 16,574.61 17,735.38 18,597.80
Total domestic demand, USD 122,278.82 137,135.34 151,433.41
Total domestic demand per capita, USD 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unemployment, % of labor force, ave 3.24 3.28 3.21
Real effective exchange rate Index 14,65 10.39 8.22
LCU/USD, eop 55.25 58.01 60.91
Total revenue, LCU 476,482.00 648,396.50 886,024.50
Total revenue, USD 8,876.82 11,411.97 14,856.05
Total expenditure, LCU 681,893.00 857,966.00 1,104,727.50
Total expenditure, USD 12,720.98 15,113.57 18,534.18
Current expenditure, USD 9,524.57 10,521.53 12,031.02
Budget balance, LCU (205,410.50) (209,569.00) (218,703.50)
Budget balance, USD {3,844.15) (3,701.59) (3,678.15)
Services imports, USD 6,267.00 6,696.50 7,182.50
Services exports, USD 5,569.00 5,897.50 6,246.00
Total reserves ex gold, USD 3,159.50 3,648.50 4,137.00
Total external debt stock, USD 40,111.50 44,666.50 49,383.50
Long-term external debt stock, USD 38,315.00 42,836.00 47,517.00
Public external debt stock, USD 38,315.00 42,836.00 47,517.00
Total government debt, USD 71,350.00 80,340.00 87,275.00
Total debt service, USD 2,525.54 2,884.18 3,181.48
Gross domestic product, constant prices 2,329.25 2,485.04 2,643.25
Gross domestic product, current prices 7,439.92 10,299.14 13,591.03
Gross domestic product, current prices 139.36 172.44 186.09
Gross domestic product, current prices 376.99 414.24 449.75
Gross domestic product, deflator 317.89 412.90 512.65
Gross domestic product per capita, constant price 22,200.96 23,318.01 24,411.68
Gross domestic product per capita, constant pricg 2,989.46 3,139.88 3,287.15
Gross domestic product per capita, current prices 70,837.13 96,546.13 125,425.37
Gross domestic product per capita, current prices 1,327.12 1,710.60 2,036.60
Gross domestic product per capita, current priceg 3,592.76 3,886.56 4,153.40
Gross domestic product based on purchasing-poy 0.22 0.23 0.24
Implied PPP conversion rate 19.61 24.75 30.11
Total investment 23.76 20.78 19.21
Gross national savings 20.32 18.14 17.15
Inflation, average consumer prices 343.31 438.03 532.03
Inflation, end of period consumer prices 376.12 468.94 555.00
Population 104.89 106.55 108.26
General government revenue 621.66 850.92 1,125.35
General government revenue 8.38 8.26 8.28
| General government total expenditure e ol I‘Qj:.::
General government total expenditure 11.73 B (310-;)9)
General government net lending/borrowing (aen.82) o 2.25)
General government net lending/borrowing (3.35) = (1;9:1 1)
General government primary net lending/Borrow s — 1446—
General government primary net lending/borrows : (2.72) el 2 Stﬂdé
aneral government net debt o % = - 3,932.01 3,269.96
1/
( Pae




General government net debt 40.17 32.28 28.08;
General government gross debt 3,105.69| 3,464.85 3,998.92
General government gross debt 42.53 34.22 29.54
Gross domestic product corresponding to fiscal | 7,439.92 10,299.14| 13,591.03]
Current account balance (4.88) (4.94) (4.68)
Current account balance {3.61) (2.73) (2.15)
Gross Domestic Product 551 5.95 6.40
Domestic Demand 5.51 5.92 6.37
Exports of Goods & NF Services 11.35 14.41 16.63
Imports of Goods & NF Services 25.21 31.99 36.89
Nominal Per-Capita GOP 1,099.17 1,360.19) 1,530.59|
Year-end 54.64/ 60.51 71.58
Annual Average 53.17 56.92 65.36
Short-Term Interest Rate 7.67 7.69 7.72
Policy Interest Rate (Year-end) 13.00 12.75) 12.50
Unemployment Rate (Annual average) 3.33 3.29 3.40
Current Account Balance (4.86) (4.82) (4.28)
Balance on Goods™* {14.45) (17.84) (19.37)|
Goods, Credit (Exports) 4.12 4.97| 6.43
Goods, Debit (Imports) 18.57 22.80 25.80
Balance on Services 0.27 1.20] 1.47
[ Services, Credit (Exports) 8.11 10.40 12.60
Services, Debit (Imports) 7.83 9.19 11.13
External Debt 28.62 28.63 2B.64
Internationaf Reserves (Year-end) 3.28 3.94 4.56
Population 124,95 128.12 131.33

Predicted relationships between the key indicators and default rates on various portfolios of financial assets have been developed based on analyzing semi -
annual historical data over the past 5 years.

The below scenario weightings have been observed:
Summary of scenario weightings

[ Scenario Base _ Downturn (downside) isti
Cluster 1 100% 0% 0%
Cluster 2 100% % 0% _
Cluster 3 92% Yo 0%
Cluster 4 100% 0% 9%

Modified financial assets
The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including changing market conditions, customer retention and other factors not

related to a current or potential credit deterioration of the customer. An existing loan whose terms have been modified may be derecognized and the
renegotiated loan recognized as a new loan at fair value in accordance with the accounting policy set out.

When the terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in derecognition, the determination of whether the asset’s credit risk
has increased significantly reflects comparison of: its remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms; with the remaining lifetime PD
estimated based on data on initial recognition and the original contractual terms.

When modification results in derecognition, a new loan is recognized and allocated to Stage 1 (assuming it is not credit- impaired at that time).

The Bank renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as ‘forbearance activities’) to maximize collection opportunities and minimize the
risk of default. Under the Bank’s forbearance policy, loan forbearance is granted on a selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there
is a high risk of default, there is evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms and the debtor is expected
to be able to meet the revised terms.

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of Interest payments and amending the terms of loan covenants. Both retail
and corporate loans are subject to the forbearance policy. The Bank Credit Committee regularly reviews reports on forbearance activities.

For financial assets modified as part of the Bank’s forbearance policy, the estimate of PD reflects whether the modification has improved or restored the
Bank’s ability to collect interest and principal and the Bank's previous experience of similar forbearance action. As part of this process, the Bank evaluates the
borrower's payment performance against the modified contractual terms and considers various behavioral indicators.

Generally, forbearance is & qualitative indicator of a significant increase in credit risk and an expectation of forbearance may constitute evidence that an
exposure is credit-impaired, A customer needs to demonstrate consistently good payment behavior over a period of time before the exposure is no longer
considered to be credit-impaired/in default or the PO is considered to have decreased such that the loss allowance reverts to being measured at an amount
equal to Stage 1.
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Measurement of ECL

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:
- Probability of default (PD);
- Loss given default (LGD); and
- Exposure at default (EAD).

ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD by LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL is calculated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD
and EAD.The methodology of estimating PDs is discussed above under the heading ‘Generating the term structure of PD".

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a defauit. The Bank estimates LGD parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims against
defauited counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the claim, counterparty industry and recovery costs of any collateral
that is integral to the financial asset.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Bank derives the EAD from the current exposure to the counterparty and potential
changas to the current amount aliowed under the contract and arising from amortization. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount at the time
of default. For lending commitments, the EADs are potential future amounts that may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based on historical
observations and forward-looking forecasts. For financial guarantees, the EAD rep the of the g @ when the financial guarantee
becomes payable. For some financial assets, EAD is determined by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various points in time using scenario
and statistical technigues.

Ac deccribed above, and subjact to using 8 maximum of a 12-manth PD for Stage 1 financial assets, the Bank measures ECL considering the risk of default
over the maximum contractual period (including any borrower’s extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, even if, for credit risk management

purposes, the Bank considers a longer period.
The maximum contractual period extends to the date at which the Bank has the right to require repayment of an advance or terminate a loan commitment or

guarantee.

However, for overdrafts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment component, the Bank measures ECL over a period longer than the maximum
contractual period if the Bank’s contractual ability to demand repayment and cancef the undrawn commitment does not limit the Bank's exposure to credit
losses to the contractual notice period. These facilities do not have a fixed term or repayment structure and are managed on a collective basis. The Bank can
cancel them with immediate effect but this contractual right is not enforced in the normal day-to-day management, but only when the Bank becomes aware of
an increase in credit risk at the facility level. This longer period is estimated taking into account the credit risk management actions that the Bank expects to
take, and that serve to mitigate ECL. These include a reduction in limits, cancellation of the facility and/or turning the cutstanding balance into a loan with
fixed repayment terms.

Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis, the financial instruments are Banked on the basis of shared risk characteristics that
include: .

Instrument type;
Credit risk grading;
Collateral type; LTV ratio for retail mortgages;
Date of initial recognition;
Remaining term to maturity;
Industry; and
- Geographic location of the borrower.
The Banking's are subject to regular review to ensure that exposures within a particular Bank remain appropriately homogeneous.

'

Loss allowance
The following tables show reconciliations of loans and advances to customers at amortized cost as of December 2024

1n Birr 2024
ans a ances
customers at amortized cost
(on balance sheet and off

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

)

Balance as at 1 July 2023 (26,893) = = {26,893)
Transfer to stage 1 (12 months 5 5 =
Transfer to ifetime ECL - 3 »
Tr to ifetime ECL - - ur
Net remeasurement of loss - = = =
New financial assets originated or (2,409) - 8 {2,408)
Financial assets 3

ance as ber]
24 {29,302) L - ﬂ_!.mx]

In Birr'000 2024
Loans and advances to
customers at amortized cost| Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

on balance t and off
Balance as at 1 July 2023 (8,161) = s 2
Transfer e 1 (12 months - -
Transfer to s 2 (Lifetime ECL - 5
Transfer to si (Lifetime ECL -
Net rem of -
New financial or| (18,732 =
Financial assets derecognized =
Balance as at 30 June 2024 (26,893 = = {18,732)

T
i

(18,732.27

The following table pravides 2 reconciliation for 31 December 2024 between amounts shown in the above tables reconciling opening and closing balances of
Ioss allowance per class of financial instrument; and the ‘impairment losses on financial instruments’ line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income.

2024

[ Loans and

advances

Investment
to Other receivables and

In Birr'000 securities (debt Total

eun.mmt instruments) & Cash financial assets

amortized
Balance as at 1 ":',.-2.3;‘ {26,893) - & (26,893)

t - E L

New financial assets originated or (2,409) (92) (3,921) (6,421.79)
Amounts di written cff =
Recoveries of amounts previously -
Ba2a - 302) (92) XTIV I : (33,315)
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instrumen

per ciass of financial and the

losses on

ts’ line item in the

it of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

AR 2023

Loans and

d to it
In Birr'000 customers at securities (debt | Other financial assets | Total charge/{credit)

amortized instruments)

cost
}‘ 3 73 (8.1€ - - (8,161}
Net remeasurement of loss allowance - - - -
[Wew financial assets originated or (18,732) (74) (3.828) (22,835)
Financial assets derecognized - = = J
Amounts directly written off during the - - L -
Recoveries of amounts gggs_ly - - =
as at 30 June 2023 (26,893) (74) (3,828) (30,795)
2.3 Credit- related commitments v

The primary purpose of these instruments Is to ensure that funds are lable to a as d. Gi and y letters of credit carry the same

cial letters of credit - whk.hanv-rtmnumm:wunwwmwuamaumw:mwpamm

credit risk as loans. Doy y and

draw drafts on the Bank up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions - are collateralized by the underlying shipments of goods to which they relate

and therefore carry less risk than a direct loan. Commitments to extend credit

unused

of author

to extend credit in the form of loans,

guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total

unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused

to extend credit are contingent upon

, @ most

customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Bank monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term commitments generally have a
greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

1.4 Credit quality analysis

The foliowing table sets out information about the credit quality of fi

| assets

at

assets . Unless specifically indicated, for financial assets, the amounts in the table represent gross carrying amounts,

ized cost, FVOCI debt investments and available-for-sale debt

The loss allowance for loans and adh to also includes the loss for loan and g contracts,
In Birr'000 31 December 2024
Loans an nces .
e, - Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
d enst
Stage] -Pass 3,345,729 - = 3.345.729 |
= on = = 5
Total aross exposure | 3,345,729 3 = 3,345,720 |
Loss ai e 777) - = (29,302} |
K 3,316,952 - = 3,316,428 |
30 June 2024
Loans and advances
- A Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
|d cost
|Stagel :Pass 2,495,714 - = 2,495,714 |
,LQMH!_:M_J_:_"’ 714 = £ 2,495,714 |
Loss allowance (26,893) = (26,893)
{Net carrying amount | 2,468,82 - = 2,468,821
In Birr' 31 December 2024
Other financial assets (debt instruments) Gross exposure Loss allowance Net carrying amount
Cash and balances with banks 2 Month ECL 1,170,572 (46) 1,170,526 |
Investment securities (debt instruments)| 12 Month ECL 667,291 (47) 667,244
|[Other receivables and financial assets 2 Month ECL 525,075 7) 521,568 |
Financial Guarantee Issued Month ECL 715, {2,090) 713,879
staff loans 12 Month ECL - - -
i'rml- 24 | 3,078,907 (5,690) 3,073,217
Tn Birr'000 30 June 2024
Other financial assets {debt instruments) Gross exposure Loss allowance Net carrying amount
Cash and balances with banks 12 Month ECL 964,352 {42) 964,
Iavestment securities (debt instruments)| 12 Month ECL 459,428 (32) 459,
Cther receivables and H*ﬁ{ assels 12 Month ECL 117,507 (3.828) 113,679
Emer staff loans 1 82,179 (411} 81,71
Totals | 1,623,466 (4,313) 1,619,153

2.5 Credit concentrations

The Bank monitors concentrations of credit risk by social sector. An analysis of

financial assets in £

concentrations of credit

risk at 31 December 2024. The Bank concentrates all its
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Public
31 December 2024 Ent. Cooperative Private_ _Others
irr'000 Biry’000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Cash and balances with banks_ 1,170,572 = z 2
Loans and advances to 3,245,591 =
Investment securities:
-Financial a: thmu h OCL - 226,912 -
-fFinancial assets at A 667,291 = = =
|Other assets: 1 2 - 521,154
|Total 1 1,837,863 - 3,472,503 521,154
Public
30 June 2024 Cooperative Private Others
Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
bal i 964,309 - -
\Loans and advances to - 2,416,909 =
-Financial aHF ir value through = = 226,912 5
|__-Financial assets at Amortized cost 459,396 = i
|Other assets: = =
22 G B
Total 1,423,706 - 2,643,821 27\ 12
D




2.6 Commitments and guarantees

The maximum exposure to credit risk relating to a is the amount the Bank could have to pay if the guarantee is called upon. The
maximum exposure to credit risk relating to a loan cof is the full amount of the commitment. The table below shows the Bank’s maximum credit risk exposure
for commitments and guarantees.

|31 December 2024 30 June 2024 |

Birr'000 Birr'000
(Guaraniees 352,602 2,898,437
Latters of credit_ 363,367 60,706 |
{Total 715,969 2,959,142
4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank cannot meet its maturing obligations when they become due, at reasonable cost and in a imely manner. Liquidity risk arises
because of the possibliity that the Bank might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows
under both normal and stress circumstances. Such scenarics could occur when funding needed for illiquic asset positions is not avallabie to the Bank on acceptable

terms.

Liquidity risk management in the Bank is solely determined by Asset-Liability Committee, which bears the overall responsibility for liquidity risk. The main objective of
the Bank's liquidity risk framework is to maintain sufficient liquidity in order to ensure that we meet our maturing obiigations.

4.3.1 Management of liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by the finance department. The Bank’s liquidity management process, as carried out within the Bank and monitored by fund
management team, includes:

+ Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met. This inciudes replenishment of funds as they mature or are
borrowed by customers;

« Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow;

. b g of financial liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements; and
« Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies that sufficient cash Is maintained and that sufficient funding is available meet its liabilities when due, under bath normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk damage to the Bank’s reputation,

4.3.2 ¥ ysis of fi ial liabilities
The table below analyses the Bank’s financial i into rek it ity king’s based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position date to the
contractual maturity date. The cash flows presentad are the undiscounted amounts to be settled in future.
31 December 2024 | 0- 30 days | 31-90 days 91 - 180 days 181 - 165 days Over 1 year
—T -
8irr'000 | Birr'000 Birr'000 8irr'000
Deposits from
customers 3,904,187 1,006,686
Due to other banks = = e = -
'Other liabilities 2372 244,337 - - 1,415.00
Total financial
Liabilities 3,906,559 244,337 - 1,006,686 415

4.3.3 Financial assets pledged as coliaterals
The Bank does not have any assets pledged as collateral

4 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes In market prices, which Include currency exchange rales and interest rates, will affect the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument. Market risk arises from open positions in interest rates and foreign currencies, both of which are exposed to general and specfic market
movements and changes in the level of volatility.
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable limits, while optimizing the return on risk. Overail
responsibility for managing market risk rests with the bank Risk Management and the Board’s Risk Committee, The bank Risk Management Is responsible for the
development of detailed risk management policies and procedures (subject to review and approval by the Board’s Risk Committee) and for the day to day
implementation of those policies.
The Bank does not ordinarily engage in trading activities as there are ng aclive markets in Ethiopia.

4.4.1 Management of market risk

The main objective of Market Risk Management is to manage and controi market risk exp es within ptable p s, while op the return on risk.




(i) Interest rate risk .
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will be affected by changes in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the
future cash flows of a financial will of in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.

The Bank's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Bank's obligations and financial assets with floating interest rates. The Bank
is also exposed on fixed rate financial assets and financial liabilities. The Bank’s investment portfolio is comprised of treasury bills, Ethioplan government bonds and
cash deposits.

The table below sets out information on the to fixed and variable Interest instruments.
Fixed Interest -interest bea Total
Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
- 1,170,572 1,170,572
3,245,591 = 3,245,591
71,361 71,361 |
226,912 226,912
667,291 - 667,291
_592,863 592
3,912,882 2,061,708 5,974,590 |
2,574,791 2,336,082 4,910,873
b - - -
Other liabilities 248,124 238,124
Total 2,574,791 2,584,206 5,158,997
130 June 2024 _ Fixed Interest| Non-interest bearing _Total
Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
|Assets
|Cash and balances with banks 182,067 782,242 964,309 |
mmmmsfmeu 2,416,909 2 2,416,909 |
Interest free banking ] 51.912.63 51,913
Linvestment securities.
-Financial asset at fair vaive through OCI . 226.912.16 226,912
| ] at Amorti 459,396 - 459,396 |
,QIELQE'JI 2 281,253 ~ 281,253
3,058,372 | 1,342,320 3,433,131
Liabilities
its fr 1,963,335 2,043,575 4,006,911 |
nk: - = =
lities 61,441 61,441
{Total 1,963,335 2,105,017 4,068,352 |

’ii) Foreign exchange risk
Forelgn exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to the changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Bank is exposed to exchange rate risks to the extent of balances and transactions denominated in a currency other than the Ethiopian Birr. The Bank’s foreign
currency bank accounts act as a natural hedge for these transactions. Management has set up a policy to manage the Bank's foreign exchange risk against its
functional currency.
The table below summarizes the impact of increases/decreases of 10% on equity and profit or loss arising from the Bank's foreign denominated borrowings and cash
and bank balances.

31 December 2024] 30 June 2024

Birr'000 Birr'000

USD 8,671 2.966.20 |
R 833 7.74
11,28 0.37
9,516 2,974

Sensitivitv analvsis for foreian exchanae risk
The i rate risk shows how changes in the fair vake or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in

¥ ysis for
market rates at the reporting date.
The sensitivity of the Bank's earnings to fluctuations in exchange rates is reflected by varying the exchange rates at 10% as shown below:

| 31 December 2024} 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000
ate on profit or loss (USD 867 297
ate an profit or loss (USD) (867) (297)
ate on profit or loss (EUR) 83
on profit or loss(EUR) (83} (1)
ate on profit or 10s: P 1l
e rate on profit or loss (GBP) [eh) (0)

5 Capital management

The bank’s objectives in managing capital are:
= To comply with the capital req set by in the markets where the bank’s entities operate and safeguard
the bank's ability to continue as a going concern;
« To maintain 2 strong capital base that supports the development of the business; and
« To sustain a sufficent level of returns for the bank’s sharehoiders.

Risk-weighted assets are in accordance with regulatery g Credit risk: assets are measured by applying a hierarchy of risk weights reiated
to the nature of the risks associated with on- and off-balance sheet asset classes.

Operational risk- weighted assets are calculated by applying a scaling factor to the bank’s average gross income.

Market risk: g assets are cal d by applying factors to the bank’s trading exposures (o foreign currencies, Interest rates, and prices.
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4.5.1 Capital adequacy ratio

According to the Licensing & Supervision of Banking Business Directive No SBB/S0/2011 of the National Bank of Ethiopia, the Bank has to maintain capital to risk

weighted assets ratio of 8% at all times, the risk weighted assets being lated as per the pr of Directive No SBB/9/95 issued on August 18, 1995,
The caoital adeauacy ratio is the auotient of the capital base of the Bank and the Bank's risk weiohted asset base
Capital includes capital contribution, retained earnings, legal reserve and other reserves to be app d by the National Bank of Eth
| _3ipecember2024! 30 June 2024
Birr"000 Birr'000
[Capital
Share capital 1,183,750 1,074,406
|Retained earings 139,824 (23,375
\Other reserves 112,628 112,628.03 |
|Legal reserve 84,326 22,537.7
W 1,520,528 1,186,197 |
i = t 6,195,809 4,516,133
Credi - 1,731,156 1, 59
T i 7,926,965 [X
Risk- d Capital Ratio (CAR) 19.18% 19.84%
Minimum required 8.00% 8.00%

S Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
Fair value is a market-based measurement and uses the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability under current market

conditions. When determining fair value it is presumed that the entity is a going concern and is not an amount that represents a forced transaction, involuntary

liquidation or a distressed sale.

IFRS 13 requires an entity to clessify measured or disclosed fair values according to a hierarchy that reflects the significance of observable inputs,

All assets and labilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, which comprises of
three levels as described below, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whaole,

4.6.1 Valuation

IFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable input
reflect market data from pend sources; vable inputs reflect the Bank's market assumptions, All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
1o the fair value measurement as a whole.

« Level 1 Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Habilities,

» Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or lUability, either directly (l.e. as prices) or indirectly (I.e. derived
from prices) .

This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in
markets that are considered less than active, or other valuation technique in which all significant inputs are directly or Indirectly observable from market data. In
conclusion, this category is for valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement Is directly or indirectly observable.

= Level 3; Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobsarvable inputs).

This category includes all assets and liabilities for which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a
sigMnud&amwmqum.mmwmdudesmmmmvm based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to refiect diff b the

4,6.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value - Fair value hierarchy

The foliowing table summarizes the carrying amounts of financial assets and habilities at the reporting date by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurement is categorized, The amounts are based on the values recognized in the of P

M“I
| Carrying amount|Carryingamount |
Birr'000 Birr'000
Fil assets 1
a i 1,170,572 964,309
a 3,245,591 2,416,909
Interest fi 71,361 51,913
L tment secy! = .
-Eguity Investment 226,912 226,912
-Amortized Cost 667,291 459,396
Other asset 521,154 113,679
| 5,902,881 4,233,118
Final liabilities
i 4,910,873 4, 91
o banks - =
liabiliti 248,124 1,44
T 5,158,987 4 3!
4.6.3 Fair value methods and assumptions
!a) Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers are carried at amortized cost net of p for Imp The fair value represents the discounted amount of

estimated future cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates to determine fair value.

‘b) Cash
The carrying amount of cash and balances with banks is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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(€}

(d)

(»)

Deposit from banks, due to customars and other deposits

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is tha amount repayable on demand.
!necmmhrvmdhxum:rmmmmmmiamm active market 15 based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts with similar
ramaining maturity.

For those notes where quoted market
maturity.

pﬂnes.rlno\uvmn.luwwdmmﬂwmaddhlﬂdhmm-wmmmmﬂrmmmwwmm

Other assats
mbﬁﬂmmmmmm(wmﬂm}mwmmﬂmlmmwdfurvﬁul.

Other liabliities
Thewmncmdwmunmmmnwdmha reasonable approximation of fair value because these are short term in nature with 8 maturity of less than

one year.

4.64 T f the fair value Y gari
DunnnmnhrmngpmmemdbvmImznmﬂmrmnlmemm.thcmmmmmmmm’dﬂnnmﬂto"wmmmmm

valuation process becoming observable or unobservable.

4.7 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

There are no aTang i assets and are settied and disclosed on & gross basis.




Gadaa Bank S.C
Interim Financial Statements
Interest Free Banking Statement of Profit or Loss
For the six months ended 31 December 2024

31 December 2024 30 June 2024

Birr'000 Birr'000
Commission income 14,145 24,216
Income from murahaba financing 3,163 3,370
Income from trade financing
Service Charges = -
Other Income (181,491) 3,073
Total operating income (164,184) 30,660
Other operating expenses (6,797) (9,489)
Profit before tax (170,981) 21:171
Income tax expense - (6,351)
Profit after tax (170,981) 14,820

Page 40




Gadaa Bank S.C

Interim Financial Statements
Interest Free Banking Statement of Financial Position

For the six months ended 31 December 2024

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks

Net loan and advance
Profit Receivable

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits from customers
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

31 December 2024 30 June 2024

Birr'000 Birr'000
44,775 19,638
71,361 51,909

(85,585) 136,531

30,551 208,079

172,436 178,688

(141,885) 29,391

30,551 208,079
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12c

12d

12e
12f

Less : Allowable expenses

Depreciation and amortization for tax purpose
Provision for loans and advances for tax NBE 80%

Rent expense
Dividend income taxed at source
Interest income on staff loans

Interest income taxed at source-NBE Bills
Interest income taxed at source-Local Deposit

Total allowable expenses

Current year Taxable profit
Loss for tax purpose brought forward

Loss for tax purpose carried forward
Provision for current tax

Current income tax liability

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge for the year:

Income tax credit

Payment during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Deferred income tax

31 December 2024

43,540 75,353
7,089 13,537
48,415 73,835
. 36
- 6,023
31,961 28,010
7,909 44,036
138,915 240,831
277,100 20,326
(151,143) (171,469)
125,958 (151,143)
37,787 (45,343)

30 June 2024

Birr'000 Birr'000

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the statement of financial position and changes recorded in

31 December 2024

30 June 2024

The analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

To be recovered after more than 12 months

To be recovered within 12 months

Birr'000 Birr'000

(8,327) (4,182)
7,598 45,395
(728) 41,213

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities, deferred income tax charge/(credit) in profit or loss ("P/L), in equity
and other comprehensive income are attributable to the following items:

Deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities):

Property, plant and equipment
Accrued leave provision

Tax losses charged to profit or loss
Gain on investment @ fair value thrt
Post employment benefit obligation
Total deferred tax

Total deferred tax assets

Total deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities):

Property, plant and equipment
Provisions

Accrued leave provision

Tax losses charged to profit or loss
Gain on investment @ fair value thru
Post employment benefit obligation

Total deferred tax assets/(liabili

12e Total deferred tax assets
12f Total deferred tax liabilities

At 1 June oCI Credit/
2024 (charge) to P/L 31 December 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
(8,086) (4,144) (12,231)
52 - 9) 43
45,343 (37,787) 7955
(50,074) - - (50,074)
3,904 = = 3,904
(8,861) - (41,941) (50,802)
49,299 ] 0 11,503
(58,160) - (41,941) (62,304)
At 1 June OCI Credit/
2023 (charae) to P/L 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
(994) (7,093) (8,086)
61 - 9 52
51,441 (6,098) 45,343
- (50,074) (50,074)
1,279 544 2,081 3,904
51,787 (49,530) (11,118) (8,861)
1,340 544 2,073 49,299
(994) = (7,093) (58,160)
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31 December 2024

Birr'000

30 June 2024
Birr'000

11 Operating expenses
Advertisement and publicity 7,094 14,648
Audit fee 345 230
Bank charges 27 14
Cleaning 6 i7
Donations 1,000 -
Sponsorship 1,340 12,196
Fuel 1,540 5,944
Insurance 4,593 8,378
Internet 3,898 4,895
Legal and professional fee 1 3
Other operating expense 35,153 20,014
Penalty 223 1,350
Per diem 1,630 2,581
Rent 50,114 69,284
Finance Cost 5,092 8,486
Repair and maintenance 529 522
Representation allowance - 22,113
Stationeries 6,161 12,155
General Supply Stock Expense 3,754 3,390
Subscription and membership fee 630 12,751
Taxes 807 1,571
Telephone and postage 37 16
Transportation 815 2,033
General Assembly 2,292 3,514
Water and electricity 335 510
165,482 206,615
31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000
12 Company income and deferred tax
12a Current income tax
Company income tax - -
Deferred income tax/(credit) to profit or loss 41,541 11,118
Total charge to profit or loss 41,941 11,118
Tax (credit) on other comprehensive income - -
Total tax in statement of comprehensive incc 41,941 11,118

12b Reconciliation of effective tax to statutory tax

The tax on the Bank's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
statutory income tax rate as follows:

31 December 2024 30 June 2024

T T T Y)Y

Birr'000 Birr'000
Profit before tax 289,096 101,269
Add : Disallowed expenses
Donation 1,000 -
Penalty 223 1,350
General Assembly 2,292 3,514
Accrued Leave 143 (6)
Prepaid staff expense 2,137 3,887
Severance pay # 6,938
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets 50,114 69,284
Provision for loans and advances as per IFRS 1,334 23,150
Depreciation for accountina puroose 29,723 48,021
Amortization for accounting purpose 1,886 3,751
Total disallowable expenses 126,919 159,889
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12c

12d

12e
12f

12e
12f

Less : Allowable expenses

Depreciation and amortization for tax purpose
Provision for loans and advances for tax NBE 80%
Rent expense

Dividend income taxed at source

Interest income on staff loans

Interest income taxed at source-NBE Bills
Interest income taxed at source-Local Deposit
Total allowable expenses

Current year Taxable profit
Loss for tax purpose brought forward
Loss for tax purpose carried forward
Provision for current tax

31 December 2024

Current income tax liability

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge for the year:

Income tax credit

Payment during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Deferred income tax

43,540 75,353
7,089 13,537
48,415 73,835

g 36

g 6,023
31,961 28,010
7,909 44,036
138,915 240,831
277,100 20,326
(151,143) (171,469)
125,958 (151,143)
37,787 (45,343)

30 June 2024

Birr'000 Birr'000

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the statement of financial position and changes recorded in

31 December 2024

30 June 2024

The analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

To be recovered after more than 12 months
To be recovered within 12 months

Birr'000 Birr'000

(8,327) (4,182)
7,598 45,395
(728) 41,213

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities, deferred income tax charge/(credit) in profit or loss ("P/L), in equity
and other comprehensive income are attributable to the following items:

Deferred income tax assets/ At 1 June 0oCI Credit/
(liabilities): 2024 (charae) to P/L 31 December 2024

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Property, plant and equipment (8,086) (4,144) (12.231)
Accrued leave provision 52 = (9) 43
Tax losses charged to profit or loss 45,343 (37,787) 7.555
Gain on investment @ fair value thrt (50,074) - - (50,074)
Post employment benefit obligation 3,504 = - 3,904
Total deferred tax (8,861) - (41,941) (50,802)
Total deferred tax assets 49,299 1] 0 11,503
Total deferred tax liabilities (58,160) - (41,941) (62,304)
Deferred income tax assets/ At 1 June oc1 Credit/
(liabilities): 2023 (charae) to P/L 30 June 2024

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Property, plant and equipment (994) (7,093) (8,086)
Provisions = E
Accrued leave provision 61 = (9) 52
Tax losses charged to profit or loss 51,441 (6,098) 45,343
Gain on investment @ fair value thrt ~ (50,074) (50,074)
Post employment benefit obligation 1,279 544 2,081 3,904
Total deferred tax assets/(liabili 51,787 (49,530) (11,118) (8,861)
Total deferred tax assets 1,340 544 2,073 49,299
Total deferred tax liabilities — (994) = (7.093)
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13

13a

14

Cash and balances with bank
Cash in hand

Deposits with local banks
Deposits with foreign banks

Reserve with National Bank of Ethiopia

Balance held with National Bank of Ethiopia

Less: Specific impairment allowance

Maturity analysis

Current
Non-Current

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash in hand
Deposits with local banks
Deposits with foreign banks

Balance held with National Bank of Ethiopia

Less: Specific impairment allowance

Loans and advances to customers

Agriculture

Manufacturing

Export

Loans to non-bank financial institutions
Import

Domestic trade and service

Building and construction

Diaspora and Institutions Employee Loan
Gross amount

Stage 1 12 month ECL

Stage 2 Life time ECL

Stage 3 Life time ECL

Net Conventional Loan Balance

Maturity analysis

within 3 Months

3 months up to 1 year
1 Year up to 2 years

2 Years up to 3 years
3 years up to 5 years
> 5 years

31 December 2024

30 June 2024

Birr'000 Birr'000
257,488 114,645
196,643 423,268
307,330 92,691
761,461 630,604
335,075 250,075
74,036 83,673
1,170,572 964,352
(46) (42)
MO,SZB 964,309

31 December 2024

30 June 2024

835,497 714,277
335,075 250,075
1,170,572 964,352

31 December 2024

30 June 2024

Birr'000 Birr'000
257,488 114,645
196,643 423,268
307,330 92,691
74,036 83,673
835,497 714,277
(46) (42)
835,451 714,234
31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000
44,103 34,983
491,685 468,345
1,110,171 609,540
25,395 57,457
400,948 245,100
736,778 633,446
263,121 236,981
201,091 157,425
3,273,293 2,443,277
(27,702) (26,368)
(27,702) (26,368.5)
3,245,591 2,416,909

31 December 2024

30 June 2024

Birr'000 Birr'000
109,002 35,332
569,889 343,726
980,322 1,432,177
518,165 42,483
328,347 51,040
767,567 538,518

3,273,292 2,443,277
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1aa Impairment allawance on loans and advances to customers

15

16

16a

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for loans and receivables by class, is as follows:

Specific
allowance
for

Stage 1 12 month ECL
Stage 2 Life time ECL
Ctage 3 Life time ECL
Total impairment allowance

Interest free Financing

Export -IFB
Domestic trade and service -IFB
Others-1FB

Less Collective Impairment
- Stage 1 12 month ECL

- Stage 2 Life time ECL

- Stage 3 Life time ECL

Net Interest free Financing

Maturity analysis

Within 3 Months

3 months up to 1 year
1 Year up to 2 years

2 Years up to 3 years
3 years up to 5 years
> 5 years

Investment securities

Equity Investments

Additional for the year
Revaluation gain or loss

Total Investment securities

31
December Charge for

2024 the year 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
28,777 1,884 26,893
28,777 1,884 26,893
31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000

28,795 10,131

39,256 37,746

4,385 4,560

72,436 52,437
(1,075) (524)
(1,075) (524)

71,361 51,913

31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000

20,291

47,759 13,032

- 34,845

4,385 4,560

72,436 52,437

31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000

226,912 2,000

0 58,000

- 166,912

226,912 226,912

The following is the equity investments of the Bank as at 31 December 2024:

Investee
Company

Oromia Insurance Company s.c
Ethiopian Security Exchange S.c
Ethio Switch s.c.

31 December 2024

Percentage

Birr'000
Revaluation
holding Cost gain/loss o

1.25% 20,313 - 20,313
0.33% 5,000 - 5,000
2.24% 201,599 2 201,599

226,912 - 226,912
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17

18

The Bank hald equity investments in Oromia Insurance Company 1.25%,Ethiopian Security Exchange S.c
0.33% and Ethio Switch s.c 2.24% as of 30 June 2024. This investments are unquoted equity securities
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the holder’s perspective; that is,
instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer's net assets. Equity instruments are measured at FVTPL. However, on initial recognition of an equity
investment that is not held for trading, the bank may irrevocably elect for strategic or long term investment
reasons to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. On adoption of the standard, the bank did designate all of its equity instruments as FVTOCI.
Gaine and losses on these instruments including when derecognized/ sold are recorded in OCI and are not

Amortized Cost: 31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000
Treasury Bond 658,711 450,848
Ethiopian Government Bonds 8,580 8,580
Gross amount 667,291 459,428
Less: Specific impairment allowance (46.79) (31.77)
667,244 459,396
Maturity analysis 31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000
Current -
Non-Current 667,244 459,428
667,244 459,428
Other assets 31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000
Financial assets
Uncleared effects of transfers - Foreign 213,994 12,359

Uncleared effects of transfers - Local 30,649 4,790
ATM settlement receivables - -
Money transfer agents -
Export settlement - -

Advance on murabaha - -
Account receivable 280,432 100,358

Gross amount 525,075 117,507
Less: Specific impairment allowance (3,921) (3,828)
521,154 113,679
Non-financial assets
Prepaid staff expense ~ 10,902
Prepayments 42,552 127,207
General supplies 29,137 29,448
Sundry receivables 20 =
Gross amount 71,709 167,557
Net Financial and Non financial asset 592,863 281,236
Maturity analysis 31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000
Current 316,352 274,162
Non-Current 280,432 &
596,784 274,162
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19 Intangible Assets

Cost:

As at 30 June 2023
As at 1 July 2023
Acquisitions

As at 30 June 2024

Accumulated amortization
As at 30 June 2023

As at 1 July 2023
Amortization for the year

As at 30 June 2024

As at 30 June 2024

As at 1 July 2024
Acquisitions

As at 31 December 2024

Accumulated amortization
As at 30 June 2024

As at 1 July 2024
Amortization for the year

As at 31 December 2024

Net book value
As at 30 June 2024

As at 31 December 2024
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Purchased software Total
Birr'000 Birr'000
38,904 38,904

38,904 38,904
28,087 28,087
66,991 66,991
66,991 66,991
66,991 66,991
60,476 60,476
127,467 127,467
3,751 3,751
3,751 3,751
1,886 1,886
5,636 5,636
66,991 66,991
121,831 121,831




20a

Motor Office  Furniture Computer Construction

Building vehicles Equipme And equipmen in progress Total

Birr'000 Birr'000 _ Birr'000  Birr'000 _ Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Property, plant and equipment
Cost:
As at 30 June 2023 294,925 119,334 38,327 66,991 91,363 - 610,940
As at 1 July 2023 294,925 119,334 38,327 66,991 91,363 - 610,940
Additions 6 46,946 (201) 16,235 51,310 21,047 135.343

Reclassification =
As at 30 June 2024

294,931 166,280 45,135 95,033 162,557 21,047 784,983
162,557 21,047 784,983

As at 1 July 2024 294,931 166,280 45,135 95,033
Additions 0 (0) 819 (5,924) 11,635 1,598 8.128
Reclassification - - 8,078 15,521 24,192 = 47,792
As at 31 December 2024 6
Accumulated
depreciation
As at 30 June 2023 875 7,497 2,968 1,667 7,154.41 - 20,161
As at 1 July 2023 875 7,497 2,968 1,667 7,154 - 20,161
Charge for the year 5,619 13,409 5,868 6,605 16,520 - 48,021
As at 30 June 2024 6,494 20,906 8,836 8,272 2 = 68,182
As at 1 July 2024 6,494 20,906 8,836 8,272 23,675 - 68,182
Charge for the year 2,825 7,963 3,491 3,854 11,590 - 29,723
As at 31 December 2024 9,319 28,869 12,327 12,126 35,264 = 97,905
Net book value
As at 30 June 2024 288,437 145,374 _ 36,298 86,761 _ 138,882 21,047 716,801
As at 31 December 2024 285,613 137,411 _ 41,705 92,504 _ 163,121 22,645 742,997
Right of use asset and financial lease liability
A Right -of use asset: Building Total
As at 1 July 2024 375,316 375,316
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets (50,114) (50,114)
Additions 88,419 88,419
Balance at December 2024 413,621 413,621
B Lease Liability
Building Total
Balance 01 July 2024 143,622 143,622
Adjustment = >
Additions 22,824 22,824
Payment =
Balance at December 2024 166,447 166,447
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31 December 2024 30 June 2024

Birr'000 Birr'000
Deposits from customers
Demand deposits 2,163,646 1,864,887
Savings deposits 1,568,105 1,428,316
Time deposits 1,006,686 535,020
Wadia demand deposits 42,329 61,405
Wadia savings deposits 130,107 117,283
4,910,873 4,006,911
Other liabilities
Financial liabilities
Letter of credit margin payables 236,770 48,992.58
ATM settlement payable 2,738 22.23
CTS Settlement account (366) -
Exchange payable 7,567 1,505.58
Cash payment order payable - 9,377.93
Board of directors remuneration payable 1,369 1,368.75
Staff payables 46 174
248,124 61,441
Non-financial liabilities
Defined contribution liabilities 3,439 2,293.00
Stamp duty charges 1,100 859.00
Withholding tax payable 2,090 923.00
Other tax payable 16,116 4,919
Deferred Income Loan Processing Fee 2,124 1,373.00
Deferred Income Guarantee Commission 39,986 16,544.00
Sundry payables —— 233,885 ... 0B.347
298,690 125,258
Gross amount 546,814 186,700
Maturity analysis 31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000
Current 267,384 67,968
Non-Current 279,430 118,732
546,814 186,700

22a Retirement benefit obligations

Defined benefits liabilities:
- Severance pay (note 22b)

Liability in the statement of financial position

31 December 2024 30 June 2024

Birr'000

13,014

Birr'000

13,014

13,014

13,014

Income statement charge included in personnel expenses:

- Severance pay (note 22b)
Total defined benefit expenses

Remeasurements for:
- Severance pay (note 22b)

The income statement charge included within personnel expenses includes current service cost,

6,938

6,938

(1,812)
(1,812)

interest cost. past service costs on the defined benefit schemes.

Maturity analysis

Current
Non-Current

31 December 2024 30 June 2024

Birr'000 Birr'000
- 6,938
13,014 6,076
13,014 13,014
Page 50




22b Severance pay

i

The Bank operates an unfunded severance pay plan for its employees who have served the Bank for
5 years and above and are below the retirement age (i.e. has not met the requirement to access the
pension fund). The final pay-out is determined by reference to current benefit's level (monthly salary)
and number of years in service and is calculated as 1 month salary for the first year in employment
plus 1/3 of monthly salary for each subsequentin employment to a maximum of 12 months final

Below are the details of movements and amounts recognized in the financial statements:

31 December 2024 30 June 2024

Birr'000 Birr'000
Liability recognized in the financial position 13,014 13,014
31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Amount recognized in the profit or loss Birr'000 Birr'000
Current service cost - 5,009
Interest cost - 1,929
& 6,938
Amount recognized in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on demoaraphic assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on economic assumptions = (1,687)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on experience - (125)
- (1,812)

Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the years is as follows:

31 December 2024 30 June 2024

Birr'000 Birr'o00
At the beginning of the year 13,014 4,264
Current service cost - 5,009
Interest cost - 1,929
Remeasurement (gains)/ losses - 1,812
year 13,014 13,014

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Financial Assumption Long term Average
31 December 2024 30 June 2024

Birr'000 Birr'000
Discount Rate 18.70% 20.80%
Long term salary increases 16.30% 17.10%

Mortality in Service

The rate of mortality assumed for employees are those published in the Demographic and Health
Survey ("DHS") 2016 report compiled by the CSA. The DHS report provides male and female
mortality rates for 5 year age bands from age 15 to age 49. For ages over 47 we have assumed that
mortality will be in line with the SA85/90 ultimate standard South African mortality tables published
by the Actuarial Society of South Africa ("ASSA"), since the rates in these tables are similar to the
DHS female mortality rate at age 47. These rates combined are approximately summarized as

Age
Mortality Rate
Males Females
20 0.00306 0.00223
25 0.00303 0.00228
30 . 0.00355 0.00314
35 0.00405 0.00279
40 0.00515 0.00319
45 0.0045 0.00428
50 0.00628 0.00628
55 0.00979 0.00979
60 0.01536 0.01536

Page 51




iii)

23

24

25

Withdrawal from Service

The withdrawal rates are believed to be reasonably representative of the Ethiopian

experience.
The valuation assumed a rate of withdrawal of 15% at the youngest ages falling with

increasing age to 2.5% at aqe 45.

The sensitivity of the main results to changes in the principal assumptions rate have
been calculated. The chanaes in the Defined Benefit Obliaation are reflected below:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

31D
Base DBO c = % Change
Sensitivity Birr'000 Birr'000
Discount rate +1% 13,014 11,416 -12.30%
Discount rate  -1% 13,014 14,854 14.10%
Salary increase +1% 13,014 14,877 14.30%
Salary increase -1% 13,014 11,372 -12.60%

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated
with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when
There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from

Arinr vaarc

31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000

Share capital

Authorized:
Ordinary shares of Birr 1000 each 1,167,079 1,167,079

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of Birr 1000 each 1,183,750 1,074,406

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the profit after taxation by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
31 December 2024 30 June 2024

Birr'0o00 Birr'000
Profit/Loss) attributable to shareholders 247,155 90,151
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 1,129,078 1,074,406
Basic & diluted earnings per share (Birr) 0.22 0.08

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. There were no potentially
dilutive shares at the reporting date (31 December 2024:nil,30 June 2024:nil), hence the basic and
diluted loss per share have the same value.

31 December 2024 30 June 2024

Retained earnings/(Accumulated Loss) Birr'000 Birr'000
At the beginning of the year (23,375) (79,871)
Profit/ (Loss) for the year 247,155 90,151

Director's share of profit = (1,369)
Transfer to Legal reserve (61,789) (22,538)
Transfer to Risk reserve (22,167) (9,748)
At the end of the year 139,824 (23,375)
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Legal reserve

At the beginning of the year 22,538 -
Transfer from profit or loss 61,789 22,538
At the end of the year 84,326 22,538

The NBE Directive No. SBB/4/95 states requires the Bank to transfer annually 25% of its annual net
profit to its legal reserve account until such account equals its capital. When the legal reserve account
equals the capital of the Bank, the amount to be transferred to the legal reserve account will be 10%

(tan narrant) af the annual nat nrnfir

31 December 2024 30 June 2024

Risk reserve Birr'000 Birr'000
At the beginning of the year 10,228 480
Transfer From Retained Earning 22,167 9,748
At the end of the year 32,396 10,228
Loan loss provision as per NBE directive 64,345 44,308
Loan loss provision as per IFRS 34,788 31,311
Difference 29,556 12,997
Transfer to legal reserve (7,389) (3,249)

22,167 9,748

The Regulatory risk reserve is a non-distributable reserves required by the regulations of the National
Bank of Ethiopia(NBE) to be kept for impairment losses on loans and receivables in excess of IFRS
charge as derived using the incurred loss model.

When Prudential provision is greater than IFRS provision; the excess provision resulting should be
transferred from the general reserve (retained earnings) account to a “regulatory risk reserve”; and
When prudential provision is less than IFRS provision; IFRS determined provision is charged to the
statement of comprehensive income.

Other Reserves 31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000
At the beginning of the year 112,628 (2,942)
Other comprehensive income - (1,268)
Revaluation Gain-Equity Investment - 116,839
At the end of the year 112,628 112,628

Other reserve represents Remeasurement gain/(loss) on retirement benefits obligations net of tax
when the Bank requires IAS19 Valuation to recognize any actuarial gains or losses in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Gains and losses on Revaluation of Equity Investment these instruments including when
derecoanized/ sold are recorded in OCI and are not subseauentlv reclassified to the Income

31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Notes . Birr'o0o0 Birr'000
Cash generated from operating activities 2
Profit before income tax 289,096 101,269
Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipme 20 29,723 48,021
Amortization of intanaible assets 19 1,886 3,751
Impairment on loans and receivables 14 1,996 22,635
Reversal accumulated Impairment of PPE 14
Suspended Interest Income & -
Provisions for guarantee & letters of credit issued 1,575 515
Amortization cf Right use Asset 11 50,114 69,284
Finance Cost 11
Dividend income & =
Retirement benefit obliaations 22a - 6,938
Changes in working capital:
Decrease/ (Increase) in loans and advances 14 (830,016) (1,577,010)
Decrease/ (Increase) in interest free banking 15 (19,999) (52,437)
Decrease/ (Increase) in other assets 18 (311,611) (210,478)
Decrease/Increase in Customers deposits 21 903,962 2,396,004
Decrease/Increase in Lease liability 21 17,732 53,388
Decrease/Increase in other provisions 30b % -
Increase/ (Decrease) in other liabilities 22 375,096 9,181
509,553 871,201
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Related Party Transactions

Gadaa Bank (S.C.) has been registered as commercial bank on April 26, 2022 in accordance with article 304 of
Commercial Code of Ethiopia. It was established in line with Banking Business Proclamation No. 592/2008 with
authorized capital of Birr 1.167 billion. It started operation on 24th December 2022, with paid up share capital
of birr 551.56 million. Gadaa Bank is owned by organizations, associations and individuals . The bank did not
enter any transaction with related parties as at 31 December 2024.

30a Key Management Compensation
Key management has been determined to be the members of the Board of Directors and the Executive

Management of the Bank. The compensation paid or payable to key management for is shown. There were no
sales or purchase of goods and services between the Bank and key management personnel as at December 31

2024,

31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000
Senior Management Salaries and Other
Short-term Employee Benefits 8,679 7,104
8,679 7,104

Compensation of the Bank's key management personnel includes salaries and non-cash benefits.

30b Board of Directors Compensation
The Bank provides monthly allowances and annual compensation fee for each member of board of directors of

the bank per the prevailing direction from the National Bank of Ethiopia.

31 December 2024 30 June 2024

Board of Directors Remuneration 1,369 1,369
Board allowance 660 -

2,029 1,369

Contingent Liabilities
31a Claims and Litigation

The Bank is a party to numerous legal actions brought by different organizations and individuals arising from its
normal business operations.

However, there is no legal cases exposure as of June 30 2024 which has not been incorporated in Financial
statements as the Management believe that it is not probable that the economic benefits would flow out of the

Bank in respect of these legal actions.
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31b Guarantees and Letters of Credit

To meet the financial needs of customers, the Bank enters into various irrevocable commitments and contingent
liabilities. These consist of financial guarantees, letters of credit and other commitments to lend. Even though
these obligations may not be recognized on the statement of financial position, they contain credit risk and,
therefore, form part of the overall risk of the Bank.

The Bank conducts business involving performance bonds and guarantees. These instruments are given as a
security to support the performance of a customer to third parties. As the Bank will only be reguired to meet
these obligations in the event of the customer's default, the cash requirements of these instruments are

expected to be considerably below their nominal amounts.

The table below summarizes the amount of contingent liabilities for the account of customers:

31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000
Financial Guarantees issued 352,602 2,898,437
Letters of credit 363,367 60,706
Loan approved but not disbursed & =
715,969 2,959,142
Prnviéions for Guarantees and Letter of credits is p 2,090.49 515

Right use of asset and Lease liabilities

The Bank leases various properties(buildings) under IFRS 16 Lease agreements. The lease terms are between
two and five years, and majority of these lease agreements are renewable at the end of the each lease period at

market rate.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Company's Lease liabilities and Right use
of assets at the end of the current and previous reporting periods.

31 December 2024 30 June 2024
Birr'000 Birr'000
Right use Lease 5 e
of asaat liabilities Right use of asset Lease liabilities
Within one year = - - -
After 1 year but within 2 vy 1,484 1,342 2,083 1,311
After 2 years but within 5+ 221,780 114,903 233,398 105,945
After 5 years 190,357 50,201 139,834 36,366
Total 413,621 166,447 375,316 143,622

Events after reporting period

In the opinion of the Management, there were no significant post balance sheet events which could have a
material effect on the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31 December 2024 and on the profit for the period
ended on that date, which have not been adequately provided for or disclosed.
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